Public Document Pack

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON
Central & SOUth To Councillors on the Committee
P la NN1N g Councillor lan Edwards (Chairman)
. Councillor David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman)
CO mmi ttee Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana
Councillor Roy Chamdal
Date: WEDNESDAY, 7 C illor Alan Ch
FEBRUARY 2018 ouncillor Alan Chapman
Councillor Brian Stead
Time: 7.00 PM Councillor Mo Khursheed
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - (CRoeuSr;cnlor Peter Money BSC (Hons) MSc
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH _
STREET, UXBRIDGE UBS Councillor John Morse
1UW

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday, 30 January 2018

Contact: Liz Penny
Tel: 01895 250185
Email: epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin _

g g g Watch a [®)73d broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Zhose fllttslrl\?ilng shguld bed aware tf;}t the

H H H H OunNCil WIll TitmM and recorad proceeaings

on the, pu.bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any mgllwdual or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking i ]

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

0
the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \,)/>
away. Limited parking is available at the Civic 1 Unbridg

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the %&Ega ﬁ

Centre. For details on availability and how to book rube and b

. . . Paviligns ™
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shogging sagions <
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre / r—LJ Intu =

where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is
available for use.

Mizinning

car park

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s), the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the

petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1 Apologies for Absence

2  Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3  To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1-6
4  Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent
5

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in
Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the
Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 42 Hughes Road, Townfield | Part two storey, part single storey 7-18

Hayes - side/rear extension and

28763/APP/2017/4032 conversion of roofspace to 126-133

habitable use to include a rear
dormer and 2 front rooflights to
create 1 x 2-bed flat, 1 x studio flat
and a 4-bed HMO.

Recommendation: Refusal

7 | Land forming part of Uxbridge | Two storey, 2-bed attached 19 - 32
12 Dagnall Crescent, | South dwelling with associated parking
Cowley - and amenity space and extensions | 134-137
72273/APP/2017/4203 to vehicular crossovers to front.

Recommendation: Refusal




6 Hamilton Road,
Cowley, Uxbridge -

Uxbridge
South

Part two storey, part single storey
side extension, single storey rear

33-44

5670/APP/2017/3929 extension and conversion of roof 138-145
space to habitable use to include a
rear dormer.
Recommendation: Refusal
Applications without a Petition
Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
9 | 1190 Uxbridge Road, | Charville Use of forecourt and office of 45 - 58
Hayes - former petrol station as a hand car
3976/APP/2017/3729 wash and valeting business. 146-149
Recommendation: Approval
10| Land Forming Part of | Townfield | Two storey, 2-bed, attached 59 -72
28 and 28 West Walk, dwelling with associated parking
Hayes - and amenity space and part two 150-153
71945/APP/2017/3032 storey, part single storey rear
extension to existing dwelling and
installation of crossover to front.
Recommendation: Refusal
11| Unit 102, Intu Uxbridge Change of use from Use Class A1 73 -80
Uxbridge, The Chimes | North (Shops) to use as a laser hair
Shopping Centre, removal facility (sui generis). 154-157
High Street, Uxbridge
- Recommendation: Approval
55969/APP/2017/3277
12| 254 Yeading Lane, Yeading Change of use from Use Class 81-92
Hayes - A1/B2 (Shops/Vehicle Repair
73287/APP/2017/3974 Workshop) to Use Class A1 158-162

(shops); D1/D2 (Alternative
therapy centre) and Beauty Salon
(Sui Generis), involving installation
of new shopfront and alterations to
elevations.

Recommendation: Approval

PART Il - MEMBERS ONLY

The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or

exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Local

Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.




13 Enforcement Report 93-100

14 Enforcement Report 101-108
15 Enforcement Report 109-116
16 Enforcement Report 117-124

PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee - pages
125 - 162




Minutes

Agenda ltem 3

HILLINGDON

LONDON

CENTRAL & South Planning Committee

11 January 2018

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

Committee Members Present:

Councillors lan Edwards (Chairman), David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman), Shehryar Ahmad-
Wallana, Roy Chamdal, Peter Money, John Morse, Brian Stead and John Oswell (In
place of Mo Khursheed)

LBH Officers Present:

Glen Egan (Office Managing Partner - Legal Services), Meghji Hirani (Planning
Contracts & Planning Information), James Rodger (Head of Planning and
Enforcement), Luke Taylor (Democratic Services Officer) and Alan Tilly (Transport and
Aviation Manager)

160.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Chapman and Clir Khursheed, with Clir
Oswell substituting.

161.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda Item 2)

Clir Yarrow declared a personal interest in Item 13, and would not take part in the
discussion or vote on the item.

162.

TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda
Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2017 were
agreed as a correct record.

163.

MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item
4)

None.

164.

TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that items marked Part | would be considered in public and items
marked Part || would be considered in private.

165.

7-21 NORFOLK ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 32703/APP/2017/3744 (Agenda ltem 6)

Reconfiguration of flat 11 within existing building and conversion of roof space

Page 1




to habitable use to include three new dormers to rear and four front roof lights to
create a two-bed self-contained flat with associated parking.

Officers introduced the application, which sought planning permission for the
conversion of roof space to habitable use for a two-bed self-contained flat.

A petition had been received in objection to the application, but the petitioner was not in
attendance to address the Committee.

Clir George Cooper, Ward Councillor for Uxbridge North, informed the Committee that
he supported the officer's recommendation and commented that the application was for
a substandard form of accommodation, without the correct room dimensions or amenity
space.

The Committee noted that there were sufficient reasons to refuse the application
detailed in the officer's report, and moved and seconded the officer's recommendation.
Upon being put to a vote, the officer's recommendation was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application was refused.

166.

7-21 NORFOLK ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 32703/APP/2017/3751 (Agenda ltem 7)

Reconfiguration of flat 11 within existing building and conversion of roof space
to habitable use to include three new dormers to rear and four front roof lights to
create a two-bed self-contained flat with associated parking.

Officers introduced the application, which sought planning permission for the
conversion of roof space to habitable use for a two-bed self-contained flat.
The item was considered alongside item 6, which was an application at the same site.

The Committee moved, seconded and unanimously agreed the officer's
recommendation.

RESOLVED: That the application was refused.

167.

LAND ADJACENT TO 1 BELGRAVE MEWS, COWLEY - 72586/APP/2017/3797
(Agenda Item 8)

Single-storey garage.
Officers introduced the report, which sought the erection of a single storey garage.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application, confirming that the application was
outside the building line, represented a loss of parking for residents, and should be
rejected by virtue of its scale, size, height and design. The Committee heard that the
local residents objected to the application, which would set a dangerous precedent for
similar future applications if approved.

Councillor Judith Cooper, Ward Councillor for Uxbridge South, addressed the
Committee and stated that the petitioner had a good case, as the application was
intrusive and should be refused.

Members commented that the application contradicts the Council's planning policies
and moved, seconded and unanimously agreed the officer's recommendation at a vote.

Page 2




RESOLVED: That the application was refused.

168.

2 WIMBORNE AVENUE, HAYES - 70262/APP/2017/4100 (Agenda Item 9)
Part two-storey, part single-storey side / rear extension.

Officers introduced the application, which sought the erection of a part-two storey, part-
single storey side / rear extension, noting the extensive application history on the site.

The Committee moved, seconded and, upon being put to a vote, unanimously agreed
the officer's recommendation.

RESOLVED: That the application was refused.

169.

16 BLACKLANDS DRIVE, HAYES - 9067/APP/2017/3519 (Agenda Item 10)

Conversion of one three-bed dwelling to one one-bed and one two-bed dwellings
with associated parking and amenity space and installation of vehicular
crossover and gate.

Officers introduced the application, which sought planning permission to convert the
existing dwelling to one one-bed and one two-bed dwellings.

Members noted the addendum, which contained an additional condition regarding car
parking, noting that the two-bed dwelling would be allocated the parking space to the
frontage, with the one-bed unit allocated the parking space to the rear.

The Committee agreed that the application was within policy, and the officer's
recommendation was moved and seconded. Upon being put to a vote, it was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to an additional condition
to ensure that the parking space to the front of the site was allocated to the two-
bed dwelling and the parking space to the rear of the site was allocated to the
one-bed unit.

170.

141 CHARVILLE LANE, CHARVILLE - 72426/APP/2017/2914 (Agenda ltem 11)

Erection of two cabins, single-storey workshop building, gate/fence, demolition
of existing buildings and change of use from scrapyard (Sui Generis) to car
repairs (Use Class B2).

Officers introduced the application, which sought planning permission for the erection
of two cabins, a single-storey workshop building, gate / fence, and the demolition of the
existing buildings and a change of use of the site from scrapyard to car repairs.

Members heard that the application proposed a reduction in floorspace, and one
building would be in front of the building line, but it was not considered to be intrusive.
Responding to questioning, officers confirmed that the new application included further
highways information, which had satisfied officers' concerns regarding highway and
pedestrian safety and the visual amenity of the Green Belt.

Councillors questioned whether it was possible to add a condition to remove the
portacabins, and were informed that these were permanent in the application and a

Page 3




condition could not be imposed on the portacabins, although officers could discuss the
issue with the applicant.

The Committee noted that it was important to see the changes to the application in
further detail, including details of the impact on the Green Belt and information on the
planning history of the site.

It was proposed that the application be deferred to allow for this information to be
added to the report, and Members agreed that although the application was better than
previous applications on the site, further information was still required to give the
application a fairer hearing.

The proposed deferral was seconded, and unanimously agreed at a vote.

RESOLVED: That the application was deferred.

171.

382 SIPSON ROAD, WEST DRAYTON - 70385/APP/2017/3794 (Agenda ltem 12)

Retention of hardstanding and provision of landscaping to front, and relocation
of cycle and bin store to rear (Part Retrospective).

Officers introduced the application, which sought alterations to the approved
landscaping to the front of the site. The application was partially retrospective as it
involved the retention of a cycle and bin store that has been positioned in the rear
garden. Officers also brought the Committee's attention to the addendum, which noted
that 20% of the overall frontage area would be subject to soft landscaping.

Members commented that 25% soft landscaping would make the application policy
compliant, and officers confirmed that there was space to provide this quantity of soft
landscaping without impacting on the parking provisions at the site. It was proposed
that a condition be added to the application to ensure 25% soft landscaping was
provided at the front of the site.

The Committee noted that the development did not require a three year expiration date,
and proposed an alteration to the condition to change the three years to nine months.

Members proposed, seconded and unanimously agreed the officer's recommendation,
subject to a change to condition 1 that altered the time limit on the application from
three years to nine months, and an additional condition to ensure that 25% of the
overall frontage area would be subject to soft landscaping.

RESOLVED: That the application was approved, subject to:

1. An alteration to condition 1 which ensured the permitted development
shall be begun before the expiration of nine months from the date of this
permission; and

2. An additional condition to ensure that 25% of the overall frontage area
would be subject to soft landscaping.

172.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 13)

Page 4




Councillor Yarrow declared a personal interest in the item, and did not take part in the
debate or vote on the item.

RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing
the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

173.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 14)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing
the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

174.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 15)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing
the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in

Page 5




withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.43 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Luke Taylor on 01895 250 693. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Pubilic.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 6




Agenda ltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 42 HUGHES ROAD HAYES

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and conversion of
roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 2 front rooflight to
create 1 x 2-bed flat, 1 x studio flat and a 4-bed HMO

LBH Ref Nos: 28763/APP/2017/4032

Drawing Nos: 16/42/HRH/102
16/42/HRH/103
42HUGHES/PL04
42HUGHES/PLOE
16/42/HRH/101
16/42/HRH/104
Design and Access Statemen

Date Plans Received:  07/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/11/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a part two storey, part single
storey side/rear extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear
dormer and 2 front rooflights to create 1 x 2-bed flat, 1 x studio flat and a 4-bed HMO
(House in Multiple occupation). The extensions to the property are identical to those
recently approved under application 28763/APP/2016/1851 as a single private dwelling.
This application seeks permission for the subdivision of the extended dwelling. It is
considered that the number of residents proposed within the building would be substantially
more than if a large family were to occupy the dwelling and therefore the impact on
neighbouring occupiers, in terms of movements of residents at all times of the day and night
and consequently noise and disturbance would be greater than could reasonably be
expected if the property were occupied by a family and thus the proposal is considered to
have an unacceptable and undue impact on existing residential amenity. The proposal also
fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision which meets the council's approved
parking standards to service the proposed dwellings and would fail to provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupiers. The application is therefore recommended for
refusal.

2, RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision and
therefore the development is considered to result in substandard car parking provision,
leading to on-street parking to the detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to
policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (November 2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted Parking Standards as set out in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November
2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 7



2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal would result in an overintensive use of the site to the detriment of the
residential amenities of adjoining occupiers by reason of noise and disturbance. Therefore
the proposal would be contrary to policies BE19, BE21 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the and the Council's
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self
contained housing (August 2004).

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal provides an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for the occupiers of
the proposed two bedroom flat and bedroom 4 of the HMO and would give rise to a
substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the amenities of future
occupiers contrary to Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan (2016), the Housing
Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016), the Mayor of London's
adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016) and the Council's
Supplementary Planning Guidance - Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self
contained housing (August 2004).

4 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development would fail to provide a communal habitable room of more than
10 square metres. As such the proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory residential
environment for future occupiers, contrary to Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's Supplementary Planning
Guidance - Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self contained housing (August
2004).

5 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development comprises a communal amenity area, the use of which would
lead to an unacceptable level of overlooking, noise and disturbance to the ground floor
flats. The proposal would thus, be detrimental to the residential amenity of future occupiers
of the ground floor flats, contrary to Policies BE19, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Documents HDAS: Residential Extensions and HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 8



(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



This application relates to a two storey semi detached dwelling with a hipped roof and a
prominent front bay located on the South side of Hughes Road. The property currently
benefits from a detached garage/store which runs the full length of the dwelling and sits
against the Western boundary of the site. The area to the front of the property is partially
laid to hardstanding, and makes off-street parking provision for two vehicles within the
curtilage of the application site.

The surrounding area is residential in character, with a number of the surrounding properties
having been previously extended. The application site is located within a 'Developed Area’
as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The applications seeks planning permission for the erection of a part two storey, part single
storey side/rear extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear
dormer and 2 front rooflights to create 1 x 2-bed flat, 1 x studio flat and a 4-bed HMO.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

28763/APP/2016/1851 42 Hughes Road Hayes

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable
use to include a rear dormer and 2 front rooflight

Decision: 15-07-2016  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

28763/APP/2016/1851 - Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and
conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 2 front rooflights.
Approved.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

and landscaping in development proposals.
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

4 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 22.11.17 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 22.12.17.

A petition of objection and 3 letters of objection have been received raising concerns about:

1. Over intensive use of site.

2. Noise and disturbance.

3. Inadequate parking provision.

4. Use incompatible with residential use of the area.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

This application is for the extension and conversion of an existing dwelling in Hughes Road Hayes to
create 2 flats and a 4bed HMO. Hughes Road is a local road that is subject to parking stress as not all
dwellings have off-street car parking. The existing dwelling has a vehicular crossover that leads to an
attached garage. The site has a PTAL of 2 (poor) which suggests there will be a strong reliance on
private car trips to and from the site. There is an existing approved permission for extensions to the
house but that was for a single family dwelling. The proposals involve extending the property to create
two flats (1 x 2b + 1 x studio) as well as a 4b HMO. The on-site car parking requirement for the 2 flats
would be 3 spaces and for the HMO would be 2 spaces which equates to a total of 5 spaces. The

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



proposed layout plan shows only 2 spaces provided at the front of the property so on that basis there
is insufficent off-street car parking provided as part of the proposals. There are bin stores shown but |
would suggest this area needs enlarging to cope with recycling facilities (can be conditioned). There
is no cycle storage shown on the layout plan and secure covered cycle storage for 4 cycles should be
provided (can be conditioned). On the basis of the above comments | suggest you refuse this change
of use based on insufficient off-street car parking.

Access Officer - No comments.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The application site lies within an established residential area, as such, there would be no
objection in principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, providing that it
accords with all relevant planning policies.

In particular, paragraph 7.15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that
Policy H7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) serves to ensure that 'conversions
achieve satisfactory environmental and amenity standards'

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that new development 'takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and that public
transport capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location
within the relevant density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals that
compromise this policy should be resisted'.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings, or not, and
its impact on adjoining occupiers.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
‘development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning Authority will seek
to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves the
amenity and character of the area'. Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts HDAS SPD

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and private
garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves. It
should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character of
the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

Planning permission has recently been granted for the proposed extensions to this property
under application reference 28763/APP/2016/1851 as a single private dwelling. The
proposed physical alterations to the building are therefore considered acceptable.

7.08 Impact on neighbours

The application proposes no additional extensions to the building over that which was
recently granted planning permission under application reference 28763/APP/2016/1851 as
a single private dwelling. Therefore, the development would cause no significant harm in
terms of loss of light, loss of outlook or loss of privacy. However, It is considered, given the
size of the rooms being provided that there is the potential for 7 unrelated individuals to live
together sharing basic amenities such as a kitchen and a bathroom within the HMO and 4
additional occupants of the proposed two flats. It is considered that the number of residents
proposed within the building would be substantially more than if a large family were to
occupy the dwelling and therefore the impact on neighbouring occupiers, in terms of
movements of residents at all times of the day and night and consequently noise and
disturbance would be greater than could reasonably be expected if the property were
occupied by a family and thus the proposal is considered to have an unacceptable and
undue impact on existing residential amenity and the proposal would therefore be contrary to
Policies BE19, BE21 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved Policies
(November 2014).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The Mayor
of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor alteration to
The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. A two bedroom (3 person) flat
over two floors is required to provide an internal floor area of 70 m2 and a studio flat with
shower room is required to provide an internal floor area of 37 square metres. The proposed
two bedroom unit would, at a floor area of 62 square metres, fail to meet this minimum
standard. As such the proposal provides an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size for
the occupiers of the proposed two bedroom flat and would give rise to a substandard form of
living accommodation to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers contrary to Policy
3.5 and Table 3.3 of the London Plan (2016), the Housing Standards Minor Alterations to
The London Plan (March 2016), the Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning
Guidance - Housing (March 2016) and the Technical Housing Standards - Nationally
Described Space Standard (March 2015).

The proposed development is also seeking change of use to a 4 bed HMO. The Houses in

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



Multiple Occupation SPD (2004) sets minimum standards for bedrooms sizes and requires a
minimum of 6.5 - 10 sq.m of internal space for a 1-person bedroom. The proposed
development comprises 4 bedrooms ranging in size as follows:

Bedroom 1 - 12 square metres plus en-suite.
Bedroom 2 - 11 square metres plus en-suite.
Bedroom 3 - 10- square metres plus en-suite.
Bedroom 4 - 5 square metres.

The single bedroom would not therefore meet the minimum size for a single bedroom to meet
the Council's standards and would provide a poor standard of amenity to its future occupar

Furthermore, the Council's SPG on HMO's requires the provision of a ground floor
communal habitable room (not including a kitchen) of more than 10 square metres to provide
a suitable living environment for future occupiers. The development also fails in this regard

In summary, the proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory residential environment for
future occupiers, contrary to Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016) and the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Houses in
Multiple Occupation and other non-self contained housing (August 2004).

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of
the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. The Council's SPG on HMO's
require the provision of 15 square metres of external amenity space for each habitable room
(excluding those used for communal living purposes). The submitted plans indicate that a
shared amenity space of 246 square metres would be provided. Whilst this would be
sufficient in terms of area, this shared rear space would be directly adjacent to the ground
floor flats whose windows adjoin it. In principal other occupiers could use the space right
outside the rear windows to the ground floor flats which would adversely affect the privacy
and amenity of those flats. There are no measures proposed with regard to screening or
separating those flats from the potential for noise, disturbance and overlooking arising from
the use of the amenity space by the other occupiers in the development. Therefore, the
living conditions of occupiers of the ground floor flats would not be adequately protected in
terms of overlooking, noise and disturbance and the proposal would be contrary to Policies
BE19, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - UDP Saved Policies
(November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or
pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The site has a PTAL of 2 (poor) which suggests there will be a strong reliance on private car
trips to and from the site. There is an existing approved permission for extensions to the
house but that was for a single family dwelling. The proposals would require on-site car
parking for the 2 flats to be 3 spaces and for the HMO would be 2 spaces which equates to

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

a total of 5 spaces. The proposed layout plan shows only 2 spaces provided. As such, the
proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision which meets the
council's approved parking standards to service the proposed dwellings. The development
would therefore lead to additional on street parking to the detriment of public and highway
safety and is therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the Council's adopted car parking
standards.

Urban design, access and security

The issues are discussed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No accessibility issues are raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate. The established garden contains a number of trees and shrubs, with the most
significant trees situated on, or close to, the rear boundary. In the event of an approvable
scheme, it would be reasonable to impose landscaping conditions.

Sustainable waste management

In the event of an approvable scheme, it would be reasonable to impose a condition to
secure sustainable waste management.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Noise issues are addressed in the section above.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Therefore the Hillingdon & Mayoral CIL Charges for the proposed development of 115.01
sq metres of additional floorspace are presently calculated as follows:

Hillingdon CIL = £12,006.08
London Mayoral CIL = £4,700.99

Total = £16,707.07
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 15



8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 16



9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a part two storey, part single
storey side/rear extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable use to include a rear
dormer and 2 front rooflights to create 1 x 2-bed flat, 1 x studio flat and a 4-bed HMO (House
in Multiple occupation). The extensions to the property are identical to those recently
approved under application 28763/APP/2016/1851 as a single private dwelling. This
application seeks permission for the subdivision of the extended dwelling. It is considered
that the number of residents proposed within the building would be substantially more than if
a large family were to occupy the dwelling and therefore the impact on neighbouring
occupiers, in terms of movements of residents at all times of the day and night and
consequently noise and disturbance would be greater than could reasonably be expected if
the property were occupied by a family and thus the proposal is considered to have an
unacceptable and undue impact on existing residential amenity. The proposal also fails to
provide sufficient off street parking provision which meets the council's approved parking
standards to service the proposed dwellings and would fail to provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupiers. The application is therefore recommended for
refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation;

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17






Agenda ltem 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 12 DAGNALL CRESCENT COWLEY

Development: Two storey, 2-bed attached dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space and extensions to vehicular crossovers to front

LBH Ref Nos: 72273/APP/2017/4203

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statemen
1625/03 Rev. E
1625/02 Rev. B

Date Plans Received:  21/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/11/2017
Date Application Valid: 21/11/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed attached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space and creation of a new vehicular
crossover to front. The proposal is not considered to have a negative impact upon the
visual amenity of the site or the surrounding area and, would not result in an un-neighbourly
form of development.

The subdivision of the plot would result in the existing dwelling having an area of external
amenity space that fails to meet the minimum area requirement set out in the HDAS SPD
and, therefore, would lead to unsatisfactory living conditions for the occupants of the
existing property.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by virtue of its failure to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the existing dwelling would result in
an over-development of the site detrimental to the residential amenity of existing and future
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application

as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a two storey semi-detached dwelling located on the South
Eastern side of Dagnall Crescent which lies within the Developed Area as identified within
the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The property currently
has a detached single garage and the frontage is laid to hardstanding. The side and rear
garden of the host dwelling backs onto the properties in Benbow Way to the South. It is
noted that a new attached dwelling has been constructed at the nearby dwelling at Number
9 Dagnall Crescent.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed attached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space and extensions to vehicular crossovers
to front.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

72273/APP/2017/1211 Land Forming Part Of 12 Dagnall Crescent Cowley

Two storey, 2-bed attached dwelling with associated parking and amenity space and creation of
a new vehicular crossover to front

Decision: 08-08-2017 Refused

72273/PRC/2016/232 Land Forming Part Of 12 Dagnall Crescent Cowley

Erection of single famile dwelling (Use class C3).

Decision: 17-02-2017 OBJ

Comment on Relevant Planning History

72273/APP/2017/1211 was recently refused for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed attached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space and extension to vehicular crossover to
front for the following reasons:

1. The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking/manoeuvring
arrangements would be provided for the existing and proposed dwellings, and therefore the
development is considered to result in substandard car parking provision, leading to on-
street parking to the detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to policy AM14 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November
2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted Parking Standards as set out in the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2.The proposed development, by virtue of its failure to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the existing and proposed dwellings
would result in an over-development of the site detrimental to the residential amenity of
existing and future occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Layouts.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

15 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 11.12.17 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 24.1.18.

3 letters of objection and a petition signed by 20 signatories have been received raising the following

concerns:

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



1. Loss of light and outlook.

2. Loss of privacy.

3. Loss of the trees.

4. Inadequate parking provision in an area which suffers from parking stress.
5. Building over a Thames Water Sewer.

Officer note: The issue of building over a Thames Water Sewer is not a planning consideration.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

This application is for the erection of an additional 2 bed dwelling in Dagnall Crescent Cowley. There
was a similar application that was refused and lack of car parking was a reason for refusal. Dagnall
Crescent is a local road on the Council road network. There are no parking restrictions in the vicinity
of the property although there is evidence of parking stress in the street as not all dwellings have off-
street car parking. The existing dwelling has a vehicular crossover that leads to driveway parking and
a detached garage. There was a pre-app on this proposal and providing sufficient off-street car
parking was mentioned. It is proposed that a new 2 bed (3 person) dwelling is attached to the existing
dwelling. This proposal will result in additional traffic in the area but it is unlikely to be significant. Off-
street car parking for two cars for the new dwellings will be provided using an extension to the existing
crossover. The new car parking involves two spaces which is acceptable when the property is in
single ownership. There are two spaces provided for the existing dwelling but the space between the
boundary and the nearest parking space should be 900 mm to allow emergency means of escape
from the dwelling. The applicant should also be made aware of the the Council's Front Garden
Guidance. Please ask the applicant to provide a dimensioned drawing of the front parking space in
front of the existing dwelling to ensure that there is sufficient space for two car parking spaces and
emergency access/egress. There is separation between the new crossover and the existing so that a
continuous crossover is not created. The proposal contains details of a cycle store and
refuse/recycling for the new dwelling which is supported but nothing for the existing dwelling given
that the garage will be demolished so please condition 2 secure covered cycle parking places and
refuse and recycling for the existing dwelling. Once the applicant has supplied a drawing of the front
of the existing property showing that appropriate sized car parking spaces and emergency
access/egress is possible | do not have significant concerns over this application.

Officer Comment: Revised drawing has been provided incorporating the Highways Officers commer
Access Officer:

Revised plans should be submitted to demonstrate compliance with the spatial requirements within
the entrance lobby and a door leading into the living area, the entrance level WC, bedrooms,
bathrooms and kitchen areas. The floor plans should illustrate the requisite clear access zones in
context to typical furniture items within the said rooms. The plans need to be amended to align with
the M4(2) technical specifications set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2015
edition).

Officer Comment: It is considered that this matter could be conditioned.Such an approach was agreed
with the previous submission.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

7.01 The principle of the development

The site lies within an established residential area where there would be no objection in
principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all other material

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

planning considerations being acceptable, in accordance with the Hillingdon Local Plan
(November 2012).
Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that the new development takes into account
local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport capacity
development should optimise housing output for different types of location within the relative
density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise this policy
should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
'development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning Authority will seek
to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves the
amenity and character of the area'. Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts HDAS SPD
specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and private
garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves. It
should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character of
the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

It is noted that the proposed dwelling would have the same depth and height as the host
dwelling and would marginally exceed the width of the host dwelling. It is noted that there is
a relatively recent similar example of development at Number 9, built as no. 9A Dagnall
Crescent. The size and appearance of the current proposal matches that which was allowed
at appeal by the Inspector under appeal reference APP/R5510/A/06/2033555. In that case
the Inspector commented as follows:

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



"The appeal site is the side, and part of the rear, garden of No 9 Dagnall Crescent, a semi-
detached house. The new house, attached to the side wall of the semi-detached property,
would result in the formation of a terrace of three houses. The proposed house would be the
same height and depth as the existing property and slightly wider. The design of the front
elevation with a roof, windows and door and the use of brickwork and render would match
the existing houses.

The only window at first floor level on the rear elevation would be a small high level window
that would serve a bathroom. This means that, above a patio window and kitchen window
the wall would be largely blank. Although this would not match the existing property it would
not be visible from the street or be readily noticeable from the houses at the rear which are
located about 40 m away. In these circumstances | do not consider that the design of the first
floor rear elevation of the house is so incongruous or harmful to the character and
appearance of the street scene that it justifies the refusal of planning permission. | conclude
that overall, the design of the house would comply with Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP)."

This appeal decision is considered to be a strong material consideration in this case as
regards matters concerning character and appearance of the street scene (it should be
noted that the street scene is similar now in appearance to when the inspector considered
the appeal proposal, the only significant change being greater evidence of parking stress).
As such, given the similarity to the development which was allowed at appeal, it is
considered, on balance, that the visual impact of the proposed dwelling would not be
sufficiently harmful to the visual amenities of the locality to justify a refusal of planning
permission.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Polices
(November 2012) give advice that buildings should be laid out so that adequate daylight and
sunlight can penetrate into and between them, and the amenities of existing houses are
safeguarded.

Policies BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) stress the importance of
new buildings and extensions providing adequate amount of external amenity space, that not
only protects the amenity of the occupants of the proposed development, but also of those of
the surrounding buildings, as well as protecting both parties privacy.

The Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) specifies in paragraph
4.9 that where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, a minimum
acceptable distance of 15 m should be maintained, so as to overcome possible over-
domination, overbearing and overshadowing. Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD specifies
that the Council's 45 degree principle will be applied and is designed to ensure that
adequate daylight and sunlight is enjoyed in new and existing dwellings. The principle
involves drawing a line from the mid-point of an existing/new habitable room window that is
potentially affected by a new dwelling at an angle of 45 degrees towards the new building.
Paragraph 4.12 of the HDAS SPD specifies that new residential development should be
designed so as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining
residential property. It gives advice that the distance should not be less than 21 m between
facing habitable room windows.

Strong concerns have been received from the occupants of properties to the rear in Benbow

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



Way that the proposed dwelling would result in an unacceptable loss of light, outlook and
privacy to the rear of their properties, resulting in an over-dominant form of development.
The proposed dwelling would however achieve the required 21m back to back separation
distance between habitable windows in accordance with the guidance contained within the
adopted SPD HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposed dwelling would allow greater overlooking of neighbours gardens than the
existing dwelling does, it should be noted though that the existing circumstances are that the
neighbours houses all overlook each others rear gardens, furthermore HDAS guidance
focuses on overlooking of houses rather than overlooking of gardens. It is not therefore
considered that a refusal reason related to increased overlooking of rear gardens could be
justified.

As such it is concluded that the proposal would not result in an unacceptable loss of light,
outlook or privacy to the occupants of neighbouring properties in Benbow Way to the South.
Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would not constitute an un-
neighbourly form of development in compliance with Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The Mayor
of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor alteration to
The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. A two bedroom (4 person), two
storey dwelling is required to provide an internal floor area of 79 m2 which the proposal
complies with. Furthermore the habitable rooms would enjoy a satisfactory outlook in
accordance with the requirements of Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2015).

It is however noted that the dimensions of the proposed dwelling is identical to that which
was considered at the pre-application stage with the exception of the first floor layout. The
current proposal includes a very large bedroom 1 which could be subdivided in future to form
two bedrooms. The subdivision of this bedroom would result in a substandard floor area and
further increase the requirement for outdoor amenity space which cannot be met. It is
considered that it would therefore be reasonable in the event of there being an approvable
scheme to impose a condition to ensure that no internal room partitions are erected in the
future to ensure that there is no intensification of the use of this site which would result in
poor standards of residential amenity to future occupants.

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of
the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. Contrary to what is stated in the
applicants Design and Access Statement, Paragraph 4.15 of the adopted SPD HDAS:
Residential Layouts sets out the required standards and for 2 and 3 bedroom dwellings a
minimum of 60m2 should be provided for both the existing and proposed dwellings.
Submitted plans demonstrate that the host dwelling would retain a private amenity space of

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



44 square metres and the proposed dwelling would achieve 66 square metres. Whilst the
proposed dwelling would be served by a garden area which would meet the Council's HDAS
guidance, concerns are raised in terms of the outdoor amenity space provision for the
retained dwelling which requires 60 square metres of external amenity space provision. The
Design and Access Statement confirms that if the Council considers that the 44 square
metres of amenity space is insufficient, then the applicant would be willing to accept a
condition requiring the removal of the single storey rear extension (which would provide an
additional 12 square metres). However the removal of this extension would result in an
internal floor area of insufficient size (60 square metres), which would fall significantly short
of the London Plan Standards which requires 79 square metres for a 2 bedroom (3 person)
dwelling. The imposition of such a condition is therefore not considered to be a solution to
the inadequate garden area, demonstrating an over-development.

Whilst it is noted that the area of the amenity space for both properties would be similar to
the amount of amenity space provided with the dwelling approved on appeal at No.9, the
Residential Layouts SPD had not been adopted at the time that the original recommendation
was made and its contents were not considered by the Appeal Inspector when making their
decision. The SPD is a material consideration and amenity space standards have been
required to be met since its adoption, being used to refuse a number of applications and also
being successfully defended at the planning appeal stage.

It is noted that there is public open space nearby, but this is not considered to overcome the
very substandard rear garden that is proposed in this case. The net housing gain is only one
unit and the existing dwelling would be provided with a garden size well below the Councils
HDAS standard.

It is considered that the external space standards set out in the SPD directly relate to Policy
BE23 and that, given the demonstrable shortfall in external amenity space provision to the
host building, the proposed development does not fulfil the requirements of Local Plan Policy
BE23.

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or
pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The previous application was refused on insufficient parking grounds. A porch has been
removed from 12 Dagnall Crescent to allow provision of 2 parking spaces for the existing
dwelling and two car parking spaces are shown for the proposed dwelling. Thus, the
proposed parking now complies with the Council's standard.

7.11 Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
7.12 Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer has raised concerns with regard to the submitted plans in that
they fail to demonstrate compliance with the spatial requirements within the entrance lobby
and a door leading into the living area, the entrance level WC, bedrooms, bathrooms and
kitchen areas. The floor plans should illustrate the requisite clear access zones in context to
typical furniture items within the said rooms. The plans need to be amended to align with the

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



713

7.14

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

M4(2) technical specifications set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations
(2015 edition).
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate. The garden does contain a number of immature trees and shrubs. It is
considered that it would be reasonable to impose a landscaping condition for hard and soft
landscaping, in the event of approval being granted.

Sustainable waste management

The submitted plans indicate refuse and recycling storage and in the event of an approvable
scheme, could be conditioned accordingly.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received from consultees are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Presently calculated the liabilities would be as follows;
LBH CIL £8,081.01
London Mayoral CIL £3,164.13

Total CIL £11,245.14
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not relevant to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal is not considered to have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site
or the surrounding area and, would not result in an un-neighbourly form of development.

The subdivision of the plot would result in the existing dwelling having an area of external

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



amenity space that fails to meet the minimum area requirement set out in the HDAS SPD
and, therefore, would lead to unsatisfactory living conditions for the occupants of the existing
property.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 30



ey [T
e o
[ ]
EE. />

|

)
it 3
L. S
! 22 g / ,/ “.‘
v .
(B

o ‘6KéNPtLLCRE§th}‘ IR

Notes Site Address

LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

For identification purposes only.

Land Forming Part of

This copy has been made by or with

Residents Services

. ) 12 Dag nall Crescent Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the )
§°tp1ygggt('t:eig:)s and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale

c e Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 72273/APP/0217/4203 1:1 ’250
exception to copyright. - - 3;, ;
, Planning Committee Date e

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey

Ta0o16269 Central and Sgugh| FePruay 2018 {4 LINGDON

LONDDN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 6 HAMILTON ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side extension, single storey rear extension
and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer

LBH Ref Nos: 5670/APP/2017/3929

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
MSB64-02A
MSB64-01A
MSB64-03A
MSB64-04A
MSB64-05A

Date Plans Received:  30/10/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/11/2017

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises of a two storey detached dwelling situated on the Western
side of Hamilton Road, Cowley Uxbridge. The property is finished in a pebbledash render
and characterised by a hipped roof and a two storey bay window and a carport to the
Northern flank elevation. The house is set back to accommodate a front garden which
consists of partial hardstanding and shingle, and is enclosed by a low level brick wall.

The surrounding area is residential in character and falls within the boundaries of the
Orchard Drive, Hamilton Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character. The street
scene comprises of a row of detached and semi-detached dwellings set back along the
adjacent carriageway to contain spacious front gardens and off road parking and positioned
in a linear formation.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Consent is sought for a part two storey, part single storey side extension, single storey rear
extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer.

The proposed part two storey, part single storey side extension would be set back 1 m from
the principal elevation at both levels, would be characterised with a hipped roof set level with
the main ridgeline and would extend the entire depth of the original dwelling. The part single
storey side extension would protrude approximately 700 mm beyond the two storey flank wall
and would be characterised with a dummy pitch roof with a maximum height of 3.7 m and
would extend the entire depth of the host dwelling to project 4 m beyond the original rear
wall and wrap entirely across it with a part mono-pitch roof with a maximum height of 3.7 m
with a lowered flat section.

The rear dormer would be situated centrally to the new rear roof slope and would measure

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



1.1 m high and 1.7 m in width.

The proposed extensions would be finished in materials to match the existing.

1.3 Relevant Planning History
5670/APP/2017/42 6 Hamilton Road Cowley Uxbridge

Two storey side extension, single storey front extension, single storey rear extension and
conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer

Decision Date: 21-03-2017 Refused Appeal:06-JUL-17 Dismissed
Comment on Planning History

5670/APP/2017/42: Two storey side extension, single storey front extension, single storey
rear extension and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer -
Refused and dismissed at appeal.

The application was refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed two storey side extension, by reason of its size, scale, bulk and proximity to
the side boundary, would result in a closing of the visually open gap between it and the
neighbouring property, 5 Hamilton Road, giving rise to a cramped form of development,
which would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider Orchard
Drive, Hamilton Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

2. The proposed two storey side extension, by reason of size, scale, bulk and roof form
would result in an incongruous addition which would be detrimental to the architectural
composition of the host dwelling and the wider Orchard Drive, Hamilton Road, Clayton Way
Area of Special Local Character. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policies BE1
and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Extensions.

3. The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its size, scale, bulk and proximity,
would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupier at 5 Hamilton Road by
reason of overdominance, overshadowing, visual intrusion, loss of light and loss of outlook.
Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Council's
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

4. The proposed rear dormer, by reason of its height and bulk would result in an over-
dominant and visually intrusive addition that would be harmful to the character and
appearance of the host dwelling and this Area of Special Local Character. The proposal
would therefore be contrary to Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Councils Supplementary
Planning Documents: HDAS Residential Extensions (December 2008).

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



The application was dismissed at appeal.

2, Advertisement and Site Notice
21 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

3. Comments on Public Consultations

A total of 10 adjoining and nearby neighbouring properties were consulted via letter dated
05.12.17 including a site notice displayed outside the premises on 18.12.2017.

A total of 9 representations and a petition containing 20 signatures received and the
comments are summarised as below:

1. The proposed extensions are overbearing, are not compatible in size, scale and character
and do not harmonise with the character and appearance of the original property and the
visual amenities of the street or the Area of Special Local Character.

. Exceeds the original building line, and therefore fails to be subservient.

. Would no longer benefit from access to maintain fence and guttering.

. The plans indicate a total of 6 toilets with no WC logo, and therefore misleading.

. Insufficient parking if this property be returned to HMO.

. No 45 degree line provided for adjoining neighbours right to light.

. A condition should be attached ensuring house is not converted into HMO.

. The proposed extensions would be far too close to the neighbouring property and will
spoil the line of buildings along Hamilton Road.

10. Liable to flooding and increased pressure on guttering and sewerage facilities.

11. Not informed regarding resubmission.

12. Will result in overlooking and loss of privacy.

13. The large windows and doors will cause glare.

14. There is a large fir tree within the garden contrary to the application form, and will
require pruning for works to go ahead.

15. Plans are bland, characterless and featureless,

16. Agree with the application for a garage to this property, and the lack of windows which
indicate it would be used as a parking area. A similar condition imposed a new building
along Hamilton Way should also be imposed in this instance,

17. There are many examples of stained glass window features along Hamilton Road, and
therefore at least one stained glass window or half way toilet window to the front aspect
would reinstate some of the original character and appearance of the dwellinghouse,

OO WN

OFFICER COMMENTS: With respect to the use of the application site as a House in
Multiple occupancy, this is not permitted development. The site falls within the Uxbridge
South and Brunel Wards where an Article 4 direction has removed permitted development
rights for 3-6 bed HMO's and thus requires separate planning permission. The Enforcement
Team investigated the claims, and it was found the site is not currently in use as a HMO.
The planning objections raised will be discussed within the main body of the report.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application be determined by the Planning Committee.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



4. UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HEA (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hilingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main planning issues are the effect of the development on the character and
appearance of the original building, the street scene and the level of impact on the
residential amenity and light levels of the adjoining neighbours.

Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part two (Saved UDP Policies) requires alterations
and extensions to existing buildings to harmonise with the scale, form and architectural
composition of the original building. Policy BE13 requires the layout and appearance of
extensions to harmonise with the existing street scene and Policy BE19 ensures any new
development complements or improves the amenity and character of the area. Policy BE22
seeks to preserve the visually open gaps between properties to prevent forming a terraced
appearance.

Policy BES, within Areas of Special Local Character new development should harmonise
with the materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in
the area. Extensions should respect the symmetry of the original buildings.

Section 8.0 Front Extensions, Porches and Bay Windows states front extensions are eye
catching and change the face of the building. They do not only affect the character and
appearance of the building itself but also the street scene. Porches should appear
subordinate in scale and form, must not extend past the line of any bay window and in the
case of being combined with a garage conversion they may be integrated with a forward

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



extension of the garage not exceeding 1.0 m.

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement:Residential
Extensions (December 2008) or HDAS, contains design guidance (below) for all types of
extensions which should appear subordinate in scale to the original building.

Paragraph 5.0: Side and first floor side extensions Two Storey: states extensions at first
floor provide additional bedrooms but have the potential to have a significant impact on
neighbouring properties and the character of the street. The Council requires all residential
extensions of two or more storeys in height to be set back a minimum of 1 m from the side
boundary for the full height, to prevent forming a terraced appearance. There is no
requirement for a set back or set down to detached dwellings as they would integrate with
the existing house, and the roof should follow that of the existing roof. The width and height
of the extension should be less than that of the original house, preferably in between half
and two thirds depending on the site.

Paragraph 3.0: Single Storey Rear Extensions: states a range of roofs will be acceptable,
however they must not exceed 3.4 min height to prevent obstructing light from any adjoining
neighbours property. Extensions should appear subordinate to the original house and as
such an extension up to 4 m deep is acceptable on detached houses.

The proposed part two storey side, part single storey side extension would be set back 1 m
from the principal elevation and would measure 6.9 m in depth to measure level with the rear
wall, would measure 3.4 m in width at first floor level and would be characterised with a
hipped roof set level with the main ridge to form a crown roof. The part single storey side
extension would measure 4.1 m in width and would be characterised with a dummy pitch roof
with a maximum height of 3.7 m. The proposed extension would also retain a separation
distance of approximately 600 mm from the side boundary to the front elevation at first floor
level and as such would result in the closing of an important visual gap which is
characteristic of this Area of Special Local Character (ASLC). The proposed maximum width
of 4.1 m would not exceed two thirds of the original width of the main dwelling, however, by
reason of its size, scale, bulk and roof form would be an overly dominant addition which
would detract from the architectural composition of the original dwelling, and by reason of its
siting to the flank elevation would detract from the character and appearance of the street
scene and the Area of Special Local Character.

On this issue the Inspector in his decision commented as follows:

"11. Through its bulky design and lack of space on the Northern side of the appeal site the
side extension would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area. It would
therefore be contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012) which require that development should improve and maintain the
quality of the built environment where extensions enhance local distinctiveness and
conserve and enhance locally recognised historic features such as an ASLC. It would also
be contrary to Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22 of the UDP in that it would fail to
harmonise with the existing street scene, and the scale, form and architectural composition
of the original dwelling, and would not complement or improve the amenity and character of
an area, as well as previously set out. It would also be contrary to the guidance of the HDAS
set out above. Finally, it would be contrary to paragraphs 58 and 64 of the Framework as set
out above, and which indicates permission should be refused for development that fails to

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



take the opportunities for improving the character and quality of an area."

The proposed single storey rear extension would measure 4 m in depth, would extend the
full width of the host dwelling including the proposed two storey side extension and would be
characterised by a mono pitched roof with a flat tip to measure a maximum height of 3.7 m.
The proposed extension would be erected flush with the existing building lines and would
retain a small gap between the upper floor windows to appear subordinate, and it is
therefore considered by reason of its siting to the rear of the dwelling would not have an
adverse impact upon the original dwelling and the street scene. Bearing in mind the size of
the rear garden, the proposed extension would not appear cramped.

The appeal inspectorate under the previous planning refusal under ref: 5670/APP/2017/42
stated

"3........ While some of the properties are quite close together there are generally gaps
between them, particularly at first floor level, and this provides part of the character of the
area and makes it distinctive."

"5...... The replacement two-storey extension would extend to the North with a hipped roof
for the width of the existing main dwelling and would continue the ridge of the existing ridge
and roof planes. To the rear a single storey flat roofed rear extension would be replaced with
a single storey lean-to extension across the whole width of the existing property as well as
the side extension. To the front a new lean-to roof would replace the existing porch and
extend in front of the side extension. There would be a loft conversion with a dormer in the
rear roof plane.

6. The proposed extension would come close to the boundary with 5 Hamilton Road. The
exact distance is not dimensioned on the application drawing but would appear to less than
0.5 m. Policy BE22 of the UDP states that residential extensions of two or more storeys in
height should be set back a minimum of 1 m from the side boundary of the property for the
full height of the building. This is taken through in the HDAS which indicates that in order to
protect the character of and appearance of the street scene and protects the gaps between
properties preventing houses from combining visually to form a terraced appearance there
should be a minimum of 1.5 m from the boundary. Whatever the precise dimension, the
proposal would be less than the 1 m set out in Policy BE22 and the 1.5 m set out in the
HDAS. The existing property is close to the Southern edge of the appeal site meaning that
the proposal would extend across the vast majority of the width of the appeal site.

7. The design is such that the proposed extension would not appear subservient to the main
house. While subservience is not, of itself, a requirement, that the proposal does not have
this characteristic means the overall composition of the resultant building would appear
bulky with the roof being particularly dominant as an architectural feature.

8. While there are gaps on either side of the appeal property to both 5 and 7 Hamilton Road
the extent of the proposed development would extend across the vast majority of the width of
the appeal site. This would result in a bulky building out of keeping with the wider character
of the area with its significant, in terms of effect, gaps between properties."

Through its bulky design and lack of space on the northern side of the appeal site the side
extension would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area. It would therefore

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



be contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012) which require that development should improve and maintain the quality of
the built environment where extensions enhance local distinctiveness and conserve and
enhance locally recognised historic features such as an ASLC. It would also be contrary to
Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22 of the UDP in that it would fail to harmonise with
the existing street scene, and the scale, form and architectural composition of the original
dwelling, and would not complement or improve the amenity and character of an area, as
well as previously set out.'

Paragraph 7.0 of the HDAS SPD states on detached houses, set ins should be increased to
1 m. Dormers should relate well to the proportions, roof forms and massing of the existing
house as it can have an impact on the residential area. The proposed dormer would be set
500 mm below the main ridge, and pushed back and set in from the eaves and flank edges
by 1 m. The proposed dormer which although was previously considered overly large and
dominant, was considered acceptable by the Appeal Inspectorate whom stated:

'However, this could not be seen from the public domain and would appear as a relatively
small element within the overall roof (albeit that | have found the roof would be bulky). | am
therefore satisfied that this element, of itself, would not represent an overly dominant and
visually intrusive addition to the property had the other elements been found to be
acceptable.

The proposed development is considered to detract from the character and appearance of
the original dwelling and the visual amenities of the Area of Special Local Character and as
such would fail to accord with Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan Part Two: Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the HDAS SPD:
Residential Extensions (December 2008).

Policy BE20 requires any new development to be laid out so as to protect the daylight and
sunlight levels of existing houses. Policy BE21 requires new extensions by virtue of their
siting, bulk and proximity should not result in a significant loss of residential amenity to
neighbouring properties and Policy BE24 should protect the privacy of the occupiers and
their neighbours.

The application site benefits from adjoining neighbours to either side at Nos. 5 and 7
Hamilton Road. The proposed two storey side extension would be erected to the Northern
flank elevation and as such would be largely obscured by the main dwelling and as such
would not be a visible addition when viewed from the outlook of No.7. The rear dormer
would be set centrally within the rear roof slope to face their own rear garden and would
retain a separation distance of 32 m from the rear wall of the occupier to the rear at No.12
Clayton Way.

The single storey rear extension would measure 4 m in depth, however the height of the
ridge would exceed the recommended limit of 3.4 m by 300 mm. However, due to the
sufficient separation distance between the two properties, the proposed single storey
extension is considered not to result in a detrimental impact upon the residential amenities
and light levels of the adjoining neighbours. All windows would face the rear garden and
would not result in a loss of privacy and overlooking.

The adjoining neighbour to the opposite flank at No. 5 benefits from a number of windows

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



along its Southern flank elevation. The maijority of the windows are obscure glazed, however
the ground floor flank window is not and serves a kitchen. The kitchen does benefit from a
dual aspect with an additional window to the rear elevation, however by reason of its modest
size and limited level of outlook, this would be considered as the secondary window. The
flank window would therefore be considered as the primary source of outlook and light,
which is further backed up by the internal layout, with the worktop and sink positioned on the
flank wall. It is therefore considered the proposed two storey side extension, by reason of its
size, scale, and proximity to the shared boundary would have a detrimental impact upon the
residential amenities of the neighbouring occupier at No. 5 Hamilton Road by reason of
appearing over-dominant, over-bearing, over-shadowing and resulting in a loss of outlook
and light. The proposed single storey rear extension by reason of its single storey
composition, depth and separation distance from the adjoining neighbour would not result in
a loss of outlook and light. On this issue the Inspector commented as follows:

"14. The construction of a two storey element in close proximity to that kitchen window would
result in an overbearing effect to those in the kitchen and in the immediate area between the
two properties and a loss of light within the kitchen. This would be significantly harmful to the
living conditions of the occupier of that property as the extension would be to the South and
would result in the material loss of sunlight and daylight when compared with the existing
situation.

15. Consequently, the proposal would not result in satisfactory living conditions for the
occupier of No 5. As such it would be contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the UDP
which seek development within residential areas to complement or improve the amenity of
the area, that buildings should be laid out so that adequate daylight and sunlight can
penetrate into and between them and the amenities of existing houses are safeguarded, and
states that planning permission will not be granted for extensions which by reason of their
siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential amenity. It would
also be contrary to the HDAS which indicates that large two storey extensions can
overshadow habitable rooms of neighbouring property. Finally, it would also be contrary to
paragraph 17 of the Framework which seeks a good standard of amenity for all existing
occupiers of land and buildings."

The proposed two storey side extension has been marginally reduced in width at first floor
level, however given its proximity is considered not to overcome the previous reason for
refusal.

The development would therefore fail to accord with Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two: Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the HDAS SPD:
Residential Extensions (December 2008).

Policy BE23 seeks to ensure all new residential development and extensions provide or
maintain external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the occupants of
the proposed building in terms of its shape and siting. This will be assessed in accordance
with the HDAS SPD: Residential Extensions. The HDAS: SPD states a 4 bedroom dwelling
must retain a minimum of 100 sq m of rear usable amenity to be considered sufficient to
protect the residential amenities of the occupants of the host dwelling. The proposal would
retain approximately 150 sq m of rear usable amenity area which is usable in terms of its size
and shape, and as such would comply with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the HDAS SPD: Residential Extensions

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



(December 2008).

The application site would retain two off road parking spaces to the front of the property in
addition to a single parking space within the new garage, and therefore would accord with
Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The application is recommended for refusal.

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed part two storey, part single storey side extension, by reason of its size, scale,
bulk and proximity to the side boundary, would result in a closing of the visually open gap
between it and the neighbouring property, 5 Hamilton Road, giving rise to a cramped form
of development, which would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and
the wider Orchard Drive, Hamilton Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character.
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15, BE19 and BE22
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed part two storey, part single storey side extension, by reason of its size, scale,
bulk and roof form would result in an incongruous addition which would be detrimental to
the architectural composition of the host dwelling and the wider Orchard Drive, Hamilton
Road, Clayton Way Area of Special Local Character. The proposal would therefore be
contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed part two storey, part single storey side extension by virtue of its size, scale,
bulk and proximity, would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining occupier at 5
Hamilton Road by reason of over-dominance, overshadowing, visual intrusion, loss of light
and loss of outlook. Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and
BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary Development

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



(which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in September 2007
agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

2 In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. The Council's supports pre-application discussions with no record
of having being taken, however as the proposed extensions are clearly contrary to
the Local Planning Policies and Design Guide it could not be overcome by way of
negotiation and therefore the application is recommended for refusal.

Standard Informatives

1 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BE5 New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy

to neighbours.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
Contact Officer: Naim Poptani Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



1

.-
[
a

ER ROAD e
15 i P
,,,,, [— 7_7_,_&_7 \ ,”’
_ [ = ) =

G

"~ avodNoruwveH

T

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address

6 Hamilton Road, Cowley,

Uxbridge

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Central and $guth

Planning Application Ref: Scale
5670/APP/2017/3929 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
February 2018

LONDDN




Agenda ltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1190 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Use of forecourt and office of former petrol station as a hand car wash and
valeting business

LBH Ref Nos: 3976/APP/2017/3729

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250
Contamination Investigatior
Analytical Report No. 17-1292¢
011/P/001c
011/E/S/002e

Date Plans Received:  11/10/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 11/10/2017
1. SUMMARY

The proposed use is considered acceptable for the site and the wider location, subject to
conditions controlling hours of operation.

The applicant has provided a satisfactory level of detail to demonstrate that concerns
raised in relation to potential land contamination matters that resulted in the refusal of
previous applications have been responsibly addressed.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 011/P/001¢ and 011/E/S/002a and
shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

2 COM5 General compliance with supporting documentation

The development hereby permitted shall be completed in accordance with the specified
supporting documents:

Contamination Investigation and
Analytical Report No. 17-12928;

Thereafter the development shall be retained/maintained in accordance with these details
for as long as the development remains in existence

REASON

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



To ensure that the development complies with the objectives of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3 COM22 Operating Hours
The premises shall not be used except between 08:00 and 18:00 on any given day.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE 3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

4 COM31 Secured by Design

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, the operation shall achieve 'Secured by
Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention
Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

5 B14A Screen Fencing

Details of imperforate screening which shall be installed in positions to be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority, shall be provided within 2 months of the date of this
approval and installed within 4 months of the date of this approval. The screening shall
thereafter remain in place for the lifetime of the approved development.

REASON

In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety and to protect the amenities of
neighbouring residents in accordance with Policies AM 7 and OE 1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies 6.10 and 6.12 of the
London Plan (2016).

6 OM15 General Litter/Waste

Within 2 months of the date of this permission, a scheme detailing the method of disposal,
storage and collection of litter and waste materials, generated by the business and/or
discarded by patrons, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The details shall include a description of the facilities to be provided and the
methods for collection of litter within and in the vicinity of the premises. The approved
scheme shall be implemented in full thereafter.

REASON

To ensure that adequate provision is made for the disposal of litter and waste, in the
interests of maintaining a satisfactory standard of amenity in the locality, in accordance with
Policy OE 1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7 DRC2 Surface Water Drainage

Details of measures to prevent surface water generated by the car wash being dischargec

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



onto the public highway shall be submitted to, and approved, within 2 months of the date of
this decision. The approved measures shall thereafter be installed and maintained in
working condition for the lifetime of the proposed use.

REASON

In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with Policy AM 7 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and Policies 6.10
and 6.12 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementatic
of road construction and traffic management schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated
Industrial and Business Areas

OE"1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE2 Assessment of environmental impact of proposed development

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated lan
- requirement for ameliorative measures

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.21 (2016) Contaminated land

LPP 6.10 (2016) Walking

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 47



LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity
LPP 6.11 (2016) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion
LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking
LPP 7.15 (2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the
acoustic environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.
LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework
3

All businesses are required by law to have a trade waste agreement for removal of their
waste by a recognised trade waste carrier, in accordance with Section 34 of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 which also requires adequate provision for waste
storage and arrangements for waste collections between 8am - 6pm Monday to Friday,
where parking restrictions allow.

A trade effluent agreement may be required for discharging polluted water to the public
sewer. Enquiries should be made to The Thames Water Authority on tel. 0911 506 5942

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site consists of a former petrol filling station located on the northern side of
Uxbridge Road, which is a dual carriageway and a London Distributor Road. The site is
currently being used by a hand car wash business. The original canopy roof has been
retained and the main car washing area is positioned beneath it. The canopy is attached to
a two-storey flat roof building which houses offices although the building does not appear
fully occupied at present. A metal shed of similar height is attached to this building and is
currently in use as an MOT and car servicing centre.

There are two vehicular access points, one directly from Uxbridge Road to the south and the
second from Hayes End Road to the east.

The wider surrounding area consists of mixed use development, including retail units, with
offices or residential use on upper floors, residential dwellings and flats and light industrial
and distribution buildings.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the regularisation and retention of the car wash use which currently
occupies the site. No additional works are proposed.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

3976/ADV/2012/96 1190 Uxbridge Road Hayes
Installation of 6 x non-illuminated fascia signs, 2 x non- illuminated hoarding signs and vinyl sign:
Decision: 30-01-2013 Refused Appeal: 17-09-2013 Allowed

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 48



3976/APP/2012/2664 1190 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Change of use of petrol filling station and offices (Use Class A2 - Financial and Professional
Services) to use as a hand carwash/valeting business and credit hire specialists (Retrospective).

Decision: 30-01-2013 Refused Appeal: 15-05-2014 Dismissed

3976/APP/2015/199 1190 Uxbridge Road Hayes

Change of use of petrol filling station and offices (Use Class A2 - Financial and Professional
Services) to use as a hand carwash/valeting business (Retrospective).

Decision: 21-04-2017 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Previous applications for the retention of the car wash use have been refused for the sole
reason that it had not been fully demonstrated that the site had been sufficiently
decontaminated following its use as a petrol station and the resultant concern that
contaminants would be washed from the site into surrounding drains or soak into
neighbouring land. The Inspector stated in 2014:

"9. There would be a cost to carry out investigations to assess contamination and possible
remediation. It is appreciated that the businesses could be shut down and staff made
redundant in current hard economic times but these considerations would not outweigh the
potential significant harm if pollution was occurring. | attach great significance to this harm
because pollution could have occurred over an extended period of time given that car
wash/valeting uses commenced around May 2012 according to the application. The end of
the appellant's tenancy agreement with his landlord might provide an opportunity for action
on the possible site contamination but the issues raised here would require more immediate
resolution given the significant safety risk to existing development in the area and the use of
this site by the public. Finally, it would be unreasonable to impose a condition to resolve this
matter in accordance with the relevant tests of paragraph 206 of the National Planning
Policy Framework because of the uncertainties about the extent of contamination and
remediation required.

10. In conclusion, the development has the potential to be materially harmful through ground
contamination and consequently the proposal would conflict with LP Policies OE1 and

OE11. For the reasons given above, and having consideration to other matters raised, |
conclude that this appeal should be dismissed."

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AMS8 Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE18 Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

LE4 Loss of existing industrial floorspace or land outside designated Industrial and
Business Areas

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE2 Assessment of environmental impact of proposed development

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water

run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

OE11 Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land - requiremel
for ameliorative measures

LPP 5.12 (2016) Flood risk management

LPP 5.13 (2016) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2016) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.21 (2016) Contaminated land

LPP 6.10 (2016) Walking

LPP 6.12 (2016) Road Network Capacity

LPP 6.11 (2016) Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion
LPP 6.13 (2016) Parking

LPP 7.15 (2016) Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes.

LPP 7.3 (2016) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

A site notice was displayed adjacent to the site. In addition, owners and occupiers of neighbouring
properties were sent letters informing them of the application and inviting comments.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



Four letters of objection received. In summary:-

The car wash is noisy and stays open long hours. Pollution and litter has spread onto the street and
neighbouring properties. Vehicles drive on, and park on the footpath, causing a danger to
pedestrians. Spray goes on to the footpath and is particularly dangerous in the winter when it forms
ice and causes a hazard. The site is also used for car sales and crashed cars are stored to the rear of
the site.

Internal Consultees
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT:

The contaminated land information that shows a low risk of contamination if the land itself was being
developed. As the ground is not being disturbed for development there will be no need to set specific
conditions in relation to land contamination for this application.

However a site like this should be restricted to set hours of operation.
HIGHWAYS:

There have been previous refusals on this type of application in the past but not on highway grounds.
It is unlikely that the traffic generated by the proposals will be greater than the existing legal use.

| do have concerns about overspray that car washes which are close to footpaths generate to
pedestrians so please condition some barrier to overspray.

| am also concerned that there is a mechanism in place to deter water being taken onto the highway
so some form of drainage system needs to be in place.

There is also the problem of long hours of operation under the existing operation which needs to be
conditioned given nearby residential uses.

On the basis of the above comments and with relevant conditions in place | do not have significant
highway concerns over this proposal.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within an established built-up area, where there is a presumption in
favour of sustainable development, subject to compliance with relevant planning policies.

The site has already been developed and is therefore brownfield land.

Both the former and current use are regarded as sui generis. As such, they do not benefit
form any permitted changes of use in order to allow full planning scrutiny, given the unique
nature of the uses and the impacts they produce. The use of the site as a car wash does
not, therefore, result in the loss of any A1 use.

The previous use provided employment and, as such, it is considered that Policy LE4 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), which relates to
loss of employment uses outside of designated Industrial and Business Areas (IBA's) should
be resisted. In this instance, the current use provides a comparable level of employment
and, as such, the change of use is considered to comply with this Policy.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



Not applicable as the application is not for residential development.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The site is not within a Conservation Area. The nearest Listed Building is The Angel Public
House which is on the opposite side of the road and is Grade Il Listed. Also close by, to the
north on Hayes End Road, are the garden walls and buildings at Laburnum Villa and
Springwell House, which are Locally Listed and Grade Il Listed respectively.

Given that the car wash use has not introduced any new buildings onto the site, it is
considered that the setting of any of these Listed Buildings has not been compromised.

The development therefore complies with Local Plan Policy BE10.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable given the location and nature of the development.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

No impact due to the location and nature of the development.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The car wash represents a commercial use taking place on an established commercial
premises. The change of sue has not involved the addition of any buildings or significant
structures and the main visual impact of the use is the presence of cars on the forecourt,
which is not considered to be dissimilar to what would be expected had the site remained in
use as a petrol station. It is also noted that car washing facilities, including open air jet
washes, are a common ancillary feature found at operating petrol stations.

It is noted that there have been unauthorised advertisements present on the site in the past.
However, advertising is not the subject of this application and, any advertising on site that
requires approval, would have to be granted advertisement consent under a separate
application or face enforcement action being taken.

The level of noise generated is also consistent with that which may be expected during the
operation of a petrol station, consisting principally of movements of vehicles and the
operation of hoses and vacuums which generate a similar level of noise as the operation of
petrol pumps would have in the past.

The use is compatible with the surrounding mixed use area. It contributes towards the
existing mix and does not appear disruptive or out of keeping with the nature of surrounding
development.

It is therefore considered that the development accords with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the
Local Plan and Policy 7.4 of the London Plan (2016).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The use involves the open air operation of vehicles and machinery as well as the presence
of staff on site. It is not considered that the level of noise emanating from the site would be
substantially different to that expected should the site have continued operating as a petrol
station. However, given the open air nature of the use and the proximity to residential
dwellings, it is considered that the hours of operation of the business should be controlled in
order to prevent unacceptable levels of disruption outside of core business hours.

Given the open nature of the site, screening should be provided in accordance with details
to be submitted to and approved by the Council, in order to prevent spray, dirt and dust from

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



7.09

710

7.1

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

7.18

straying into nearby residential properties.

It is therefore considered that, subject to control by relevant planning conditions, the
development satisfies Policies OE1 and OE3 and London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.15.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not applicable as the use of the site is not residential.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The Council's Highway Engineers have assessed the application and do not considered that
the use as a car wash generates levels of traffic that are significantly different to that
associated with the former use of the site as a petrol station. Existing access/egress points
remain in use.

Concern was raised that water spray may stray over the highway, causing a hazard to
pedestrians and motorists. Similarly, concern was raised regarding the discharge of surface
water onto the highway. This could be controlled through the use of sympathetic screening
and drainage measures which can be secured by way of planning conditions.

Subject to compliance with conditions, the development would accord with Policies AM7 and
AM14 of the Local Plan and Policies 6.10 and 6.12 of the London Plan.
Urban design, access and security

A condition will be attached to any approval to ensure that secured by design standards are
incorporated and maintained.
Disabled access

Not applicable to this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The site does not possess any existing landscaping nor is it deemed suitable for landscape
planting.
Sustainable waste management

A condition requiring details of waste management for the operation to be submitted to, and
approved, by the Council shall be attached to any approval. Given that the use is already in
operation, these details will be required within 2 months of the decision date.

Subject to compliance with this condition, the development would satisfy Policy OE1 of the
Local Plan.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Given the nature of the proposed use, details of measures taken to prevent surface water
discharging onto the highway will be required to be submitted to, and approved, by the
Council within 2 months of the date of any approval given.

Subject to compliance with this condition, the development would be compliant with Policy
OE 8 of the Local Plan.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The site is located within a mixed use area where commercial activities take place
throughout the course of the day. The proximity to residential dwellings and flats is noted

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



and, as such, a condition would be attached to any approval to restrict hours of use so as to
prevent disturbance towards neighbouring residents in the form of noise and light outside of
general working hours.

Subject to compliance with this condition, the development would meet the requirements of
Local Plan Policy OE1 and London Plan Policy 7.15.
7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The application relates to use of the premises as a car wash only and does not purport to
approve any other uses that may be taking place on site.

Comments regarding noise and hours of operation are noted and a condition will be
attached to any approval to control hours of use.

Conditions will be attached to any approval given to secure screening to prevent water
discharge onto the neighbouring highway and to ensure that a responsible waste
management scheme is provided and maintained on site.

The Council's Highway Engineers are satisfied with the access arrangements for the use.
Driver behaviour on entering and leaving the site cannot be controlled by planning
conditions but would be subject to highway enforcement.

7.20 Planning obligations

The scale and nature of the proposal does not warrant the provision of any measures or
contributions that would need to be secured by legal agreement.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

The car wash use is already in operation and has been subject to investigation by Planning
Enforcement, resulting in the submission of this planning application.

An enforcement notice has been served and would be acted on in the event of this
application being refused.
7.22 Other Issues

CONTAMINATED LAND:

Previous applications have been refused as it had not been demonstrated that measures to
remove contaminants from the land had been taken or that the possibility of contaminants
being washed from the site onto surrounding land and into water courses had been
assessed.

The current application includes a comprehensive Contamination Investigation Report which
has been assessed by the Council's Environmental Protection Unit and found to be
acceptable. The report confirms that there are no contaminants remaining from the previous
petrol station use and that all buried petrol tanks have been fully decommissioned by
qualified engineers.

As such, it is considered that the objections previously raised have now been addressed and

that the development therefore complies with Local Plan Policies OE1 and OE11 and Policy
5.21 of the London Plan.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The applicant has overcome previous objections to the scheme by demonstrating that the
use would not result in the risk of discharge of contaminants onto neighbouring land and into
watercourses.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)

Hillingdon Noise SPD

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Contact Officer: James McLean Smith Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



Warehouse

K ' K / — I N \
,,’I /ll 969 \/’ \\\\‘\‘\~ N
D €69 /\/\ ~ e
Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. 1 190 Uxbridge Road Residents Services
This copy has been made by or with - . .
the authority of the Head of Committee CM%gz;:s&gnglqgibtfégix'zgoﬁﬁ 11 uw
Services pursuant to section 47 of the )
§°tp1ygggt('£eig:)s and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
c e Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 3976/APP/201 713729 1 500
exception to copyright. - -
, Planning Committee Date _
@ Crown copyright and database 3 : - o
O 2oy ranance Survey Central and Isdg euoth February 2018 | T L LINGDON

LONDDN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Agenda ltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 28, AND 28 WEST WALK HAYES

Development: Two storey, 2-bed, attached dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space and part two storey, part single storey rear extension to existing dwellin
and installation of crossover to front

LBH Ref Nos: 71945/APP/2017/3032

Drawing Nos: 16/45/01 Rev. E
Location Plan (1:1250
16/45/02 Rev. F

Date Plans Received:  17/08/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 17/08/2017
Date Application Valid: 04/09/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a new 2-bedroom house
as an extension to the existing end terrace dwelling with associated crossovers, parking
and amenity space. It is considered that the proposal fails to address relevant national and
council's policies alongside the HDAS (SPG) and would result in a cramped form of
development by reason of the siting on this open prominent position which would result in
the closing of an important gap characteristic to the area and would be visually at odds with
the predominant character, appearance and scale of buildings within the surrounding street
scene. The proposal also fail to make sufficient parking provision to meet Council
standards.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by reason of its siting, size, scale, bulk and design, would result in a
cramped form of development which would fail to harmonise with the architectural
composition of the original dwelling, would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the
street scene and the character and appearance of the surrounding East & West Walk,
Botwell Area of Special Local Character. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE1
and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), Policy 7.4 of the London Plan (2016) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS: Residential Extensions and HDAS: Residential
Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking/manoeuvring/access
arrangements would be provided, and therefore the development is considered to result in
substandard car parking provision, leading to on-street parking/queuing to the detriment of
public and highway safety and contrary to policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted
Parking Standards as set out in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character
NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development
NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design
4

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. The
Council's supports pre-application discussions.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application property sits on the North-Eastern side of West Walk at the South-Eastern
end of a two storey terrace of four dwellings. It lies within a cul-de sac which is home to
similar houses arranged in pairs and fours. A noticeable element of the street scene is the
general uniformity of the dwellings and the 'catslide' roof feature which runs along the flank
elevations of the overwhelming majority of semi-detached and end of terrace properties
within West Walk.

The proposal property is largely unaltered with a flank wall door and white render external
facings. The dwelling has a flat rear garden and the front garden mainly covered with grass
with a hard-surfaced area for parking 1 car to the front, surrounded by a mature hedge
which is another typical feature of the area.

The application property adjoins 27 West Walk to the North West, which is not altered. To
the South East of the application property are the rear gardens of a pair of semi-detached
properties (Nos 9 and 11) fronting Crossway, positioned on the dominant corner plot at the
junction of West Walk with Crossway.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising two storey semi-
detached and terraced houses. The application site lies within the East and West Walk Area
of Special Local Character (ASLC) as identified in the the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme
The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed, attached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space and part two storey, part single storey
rear extension to existing dwelling and installation of crossover to front.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
None.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1

(2012) Built Environment

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES New development within areas of special local character

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



8 neighbouring properties, along with the Hayes Garden Village Residents Association, Hayes
Conservation Area Advisory Panel were consulted by letter dated 08/08/2017 and re-consulted.

By the close of the consultation period on 14/12/2017, one objection received summarised as follow

1. With the number of changes made to properties in this area, | think one more house will not change
the landscape very much.

2. Object to number of beds in sheds in the area.

Officer Comment: With regard to point 2, this is not relevant to this application and no details of the
location of these have been provided.

Hayes Conservation Area Advisory Panel:

The revised plans address one major issue we had identified in our earlier comments as the catslide
roof is now retained, and by mirroring the layout of the proposed new house a harmonious street
frontage has been produced. We note there is now provision for refuse bins on both properties.

It could be argued that as what is proposed is an extra house, rather than an extension, the lack of
inset from the

building line and continuation of the ridge line are acceptable. However the revised plans do nothing
to address our concerns about the first floor rear extension and the oppressive and overbearing side
elevation. The proposal to extend the dropped kerb will reduce the available on-street parking, which
is already at a premium.

Internal Consultees
Conservation And Urban Design Officer

BACKGROUND: This site forms part of an inter-war housing estate which is characterised by groups
of 1920s/1930s terraces of four and semi-detached two storey houses, designed in a formal, cruciform
layout, and designated the East and West Walk Area of Special Local Character (ASLC). The ASLC
forms part of an original planned estate between Birchway and Hunters Grove, once known as Hayes
Garden Village, and designed as social housing for railway workers.

East and West Walk has a spacious character with a regular rhythm of two storey houses, the gaps
between the buildings adding to its very distinctive appearance.

The houses are of similar design and materials, with pantiled hipped roofs, small cat-slide roofs over
the flank walls, side entrances and central stacks. Most of the frontages have retained mature
hedges. There is a distinct symmetry, in terms of the architectural style and layout.

No. 28 is the end property in a terrace of four. It is largely unaltered with a flank wall door and catslide
on the gable. No.25, at the other end of the terrace was extended with a two storey side extension
some time ago in 2005. This is an unattractive extension, although it was permitted in the context of
an existing single storey side extension, and its position adjacent to another terrace.

The proposal at No. 28 would involve building another unit to the terrace, which would be narrower
and thus poorly proportioned, closing the gap at the end of the terrace, and destroying the rhythm and
layout of the terrace and thus the pattern of the area as a whole, necessitate the relocation of the
flank wall door to the front and necessitate the removal of the whole of the large front hedge and the

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



paving over of almost all of the front garden for parking. Terraces of five are not part of the make-up
of this area and the lack of chimney, side entrance and gap between house and boundary would
accentuate this. The existing house and the new house would have a two storey rear extension, the
design of which would be quite at odds with the character of the house.

This proposal is unacceptable in principle as it would have a very detrimental effect on the character
and appearance of the Area of Special Local Character and constitute a very damaging precedent.
Other applications for new houses which would have damaged the formal layout and character of the
ASLC have been refused in the past and dismissed on appeal.

The Amended Drawings

The amended drawing still proposes a new house and has exactly the same floor area, rear elevation
and front garden layout. The only difference is that the front door has been moved to the other side of
the bay window and the roof pitch increased to allow a more traditional hip detail. This does not
overcome all the issues given above. This proposal would have a very detrimental effect on the
character and appearance of the Area of Special Local Character and constitute a very damaging
precedent. Moreover, it does not accord with HDAS.

RECOMMENDATION: Unacceptable in principle.
Highways Officer:

A revised layout plan has been provided that still only has 1 car parking space per dwelling (1 for
existing and 1 for proposed) which does not meet the current planning policy and on that basis the
application should be refused especially when the poor PTAL is considered. There is no secure
covered cycle parking provided so if permission is to be granted this should be conditioned 1 space
per dwelling (existing and proposed).

Access Officer:

Any grant of planning permission should include the following condition: The dwelling(s) would be
required to be constructed to meet the standards for a Category 2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in
Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015 REASON: To ensure an appropriate
standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan policy 3.8 c, is achieved and maintained.

Environmental Protection Unit:

No objection subject to control of environmental nuisance from construction work informative.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The application site lies within an established residential area, as such, there would be no
objection in principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, providing that it
accords with all relevant planning policies.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2016) seeks to ensure that new development 'takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and that public
transport capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location
within the relevant density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals that
compromise this policy should be resisted'.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings, or not, and
its impact on adjoining occupiers.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is located within the East & West Walk, Botwell Area of Special Local
Character ASLC. The visual impact of the proposal is assessed in the section below.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
'development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further stressed under Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning Authority will seek
to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves the
amenity and character of the area'. The application site also lies within the East & West
Walk, Botwell ASLC. Policy BE5 of the Local Plan requires development to respect this
special character.

Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts HDAS SPD specifies that developments should
incorporate usable, attractively laid out and private garden space conveniently located in
relation to the property or properties it serves. It should be of an appropriate size, having
regard to the size of the dwelling and character of the area.

Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new development
should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the development is
best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of surrounding buildings.

The application site comprises the front, side and rear garden area of an existing end
terrace property situated on the North-Eastern side of West Walk with the rear boundaries of
the rear gardens of semi-detached pair No 9 and 11 Crossway to the South East and
occupies a prominent and attractive plot with an open view at the attractive flank wall with
the main entrance and catslide on the gable. The dwellings in this cul-de-sac comprise
similar houses arranged in pairs and fours with the 'catslide’ roof feature and remains of the
large front hedges.

The proposed two storey, 2-bed dwelling as amended would be attached to the end terrace
property No 28 and would be marginally narrower than No 28 but would have the same
depth and height as the host building as extended. The host building would be extended to
the rear by 3 m at the ground floor level and by 1.6 m at the first floor level (leaving a gap of
2.35 m from the shared boundary). The main roof would be hipped with an increased roof
pitch to allow a more traditional hip detail. The roof above the single storey rear
extension/rear projection of the new dwelling would be mono-pitched, 3.4 m high and the
pitched roof above first floor rear extension/first floor rear projection would have the ridge
marginally lower than the ridge of the original house. The large exposed flank wall would be
inanimate and overbearing. The side elevation of the proposed attached dwelling would abut
the shared boundary, leaving a gap of 0.1 m only.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



The Council requires all residential extensions and buildings of two or more storeys in height
to be set back a minimum of 1 metre from the side boundary of the property for the full height
of the building.

The side entrance of the host building would be replaced to the front elevation; the front
door of the proposed dwelling has been moved to the other side of the bay window. As such
the front elevation of both dwellings would be almost identical. This proposal is
unacceptable in principle as it would have a very detrimental effect on the character and
appearance of the Area of Special Local Character and constitute a very damaging
precedent. This proposal at No. 28 would involve building another unit to the terrace, which
would be narrower and thus poorly proportioned, would disproportionately and adversely
affect the host building, closing the gap at the end of the terrace, and destroying the rhythm
and layout of the terrace and thus the pattern of the area as a whole, demonstrating an
intrusive and overbearing appearance, especially observed from the side. In addition, the
proposal would necessitate the removal of the whole of the large front hedge and the paving
over of almost all of the front garden for parking. Terraces of five are not part of the make-up
of this area and the lack of chimney, side entrance and gap between house and boundary
would accentuate this. The existing house and the new house would have a two storey rear
extension, the design of which would be quite at odds with the character of the house.

The proposed attached dwelling would make the host building unduly prominent in the street
scene, given its position on the side elevation, When viewed from the South East (junction
with Crossway), the proposed dwelling would be seen in the context of the other dwellings
on West Walk. The proposed dwelling would occupy the full width of the plot. By reason of
the increased height and bulk, proximity to the hedge/fence on the common boundary of pair
of semi within corner location, it would have a prominent and cramped appearance that
would be at odds with the more spacious setting and open character of the development on
West Walk.

It was noticed that No.25, at the other end of the terrace was extended with a two storey
side extension some time ago in 2005. This is an unattractive extension, although it was
permitted in the context of an existing single storey side extension, and its position adjacent
to another terrace.

Therefore, it is considered that the proposed attached dwelling would be harmful to the
character and appearance of the existing building and the Area of Special Local Character.
As a result, the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy 7.4 of
the London Plan (2016) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Documents
HDAS: Residential Extensions and HDAS: Residential Layouts.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Polices
(November 2012) give advice that buildings should be laid out so that adequate daylight and
sunlight can penetrate into and between them, and the amenities of existing houses are
safeguarded.

Policies BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) stress the importance of

new buildings and extensions providing adequate amount of external amenity space, that not
only protects the amenity of the occupants of the proposed development, but also of those of

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



the surrounding buildings, as well as protecting both parties privacy.

The Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) specifies in paragraph
4.9 that where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, a minimum
acceptable distance of 15 m should be maintained, so as to overcome possible over-
domination, overbearing and overshadowing. Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD specifies
that the Council's 45 degree principle will be applied and is designed to ensure that
adequate daylight and sunlight is enjoyed in new and existing dwellings. The principle
involves drawing a line from the mid-point of an existing/new habitable room window that is
potentially affected by a new dwelling at an angle of 45 degrees towards the new building.
Paragraph 4.12 of the HDAS SPD specifies that new residential development should be
designed so as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining
residential property. It gives advice that the distance should not be less than 21 m between
facing habitable room windows.

With regard to the proposal it is considered that it would not cause an unacceptable loss of
light or outlook to adjoining occupiers. Whilst the proposed two storey dwelling abutting the
shared boundary would increase the proximity, it is not considered that any material loss of
amenity would arise to adjoining occupiers. The proposal therefore would accord with
policies BE20, and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

With regard to any loss of privacy, the proposed flank wall would be inanimate and the rear
elevation would be within a considerable distance from the properties to the rear and would
not result in any additional overlooking. Therefore, the proposal is considered to comply
with Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The submitted plans do not include any details of noise insulation. If the scheme were
considered acceptable in all other respects it is considered that it would be appropriate to
secure details of noise insulation by way of condition to ensure that the proposal would not
have an unacceptable impact upon the occupants of the existing dwelling in terms of noise
and disturbance.

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The Mayor
of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor alteration to
The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. For a 2 bed dwelling (4
persons) a floor area of 79 sq m would be required. The proposed plans indicate a floor area
of 79 sq m which wold satisfy the requirement. Therefore adequate space would be provided
to meet the London Plan and the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) space requirements.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



710

7.1

712

719

7.20

7.22

Section 4.9.

The Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement Residential Layouts, requires the
provision of adequate private amenity space, which for a 2 bed property would be a
minimum of 60 sg.m. Both the existing and proposed dwellings would be provided with
amenity space in excess of this and the proposal therefore complies with policy BE23 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or
pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

West Walk is an existing local narrow road in the Council Road Network. The site has a
PTAL value of 2 which suggests there will be a strong reliance on private cars for trip
making to and from the site. The site has an existing driveway but no vehicular crossover
provided. There is high parking stress in the area as not all properties have off-street car
parking. The proposal would require 3 off-street car parking spaces in order to adhere to
Planning Policy given the poor PTAL value.

A revised layout plan shows only 1 car parking space per dwelling (1 for existing and 1 for
proposed) which does not meet the current planning policy, especially when the poor PTAL
is considered. Considering the very limited amount of on-street parking available and the
demand for this type of facility, it is considered that the proposals would be likely to result in
increased parking stress and illegal/indiscriminate parking to the detriment of highway
safety. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No issues are raised in terms of accessibility.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Therefore the Hillingdon & Mayoral CIL Charges for the proposed development of 103.8 sq
metres of additional floorspace are presently calculated as follows:

Hillingdon CIL = £8,889.12
London Mayoral CIL = £3,480.54

Total = £12,369.66
Other Issues

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



No other issues raised.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of two storey, 2-bed, attached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space and part two storey, part single storey
rear extension to existing dwelling and installation of crossover to front.

The proposal would involve building another unit to the terrace, closing the gap at the end of
the terrace, destroying the rhythm and layout of the terrace and thus the pattern of the area
as a whole, necessitate the relocation of the flank wall door to the front and necessitate the
removal of the whole of the large front hedge. Since the terraces of five are not part of the
make-up of this area and the lack of chimney, side entrance and gap between house and
boundary would accentuate this. What is more, the existing house and the new house would
have a two storey rear extension, the design of which would be quite at odds with the
character of the house. Itis considered that the proposed development would be unwelcome
addition which will attract the eye and detract from the hierarchy of architecture hereabouts
to the detriment of the character and appearance of the existing building and the Area of
Special Local Character. Furthermore the proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off
street parking/manoeuvring/access arrangements would be provided, and therefore the
development is considered to result in substandard car parking provision to the Council's
approved car parking standard, leading to on-street parking/queuing to the detriment of
public and highway safety.

The application is thus recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Maria Tomalova Telephone No: 01895250320

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 70



LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary ] OF HILLINGDON
. Land Forming Part of 28 and Residents Services

28 West Walk, Hayes
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

For identification purposes only.

Services pursuant to section 47 of the

iotp:/gggt(,tﬁesAig:) sssssssssss Planning Application Ref: Scale
c e Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 71 945/APP/201 7/3032 1:1 !250
exception to copyright. - -

. Plannin g Committee Date

Central and Sguth February 2018




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



Agenda ltem 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address UNIT 102, INTU UXBRIDGE, THE CHIMES SHOPPING CENTRE HIGH
STREET UXBRIDGE

Development: Change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to use as a laser hair removal facilit
(sui generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 55969/APP/2017/3277

Drawing Nos: SAV/TCSC/SLF

Clinic design and Fit-Out Sheet:

6192-005
Date Plans Received:  08/09/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/09/2017
Date Application Valid: 04/10/2017 04/10/2017

1. SUMMARY

The application unit is located on the ground floor of the Chimes shopping centre, located
on the North East side of High Street, Uxbridge opposite Vine Street within the Old
Uxbridge Conservation Area. The proposal involves the change of use of Unit 102 from
retail to sui generis use which would enable its use for laser hair removal. The proposal
would retain a reception area in the front section of the unit with the laser hair removal
facilities being sited towards the rear. It is considered that the use would accord with the
character and function of the shopping centre and although the change of use would not
strictly comply with the requirements of policy S11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012), it is considered that given the small size of the unit, it is
considered that there would be no material harm to the vitality and viability of this part of the
shopping centre.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 Ccom4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans Clinic design and Fit-Out Sheets and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

DAS-SF Shopfronts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The Chimes Shopping Centre is located on the North East side of High Street, Uxbridge
opposite Vine Street. The application site lies within the Primary Shopping Area of the
Uxbridge Town Centre, as identified in the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012). The application unit is located on the ground floor of the
shopping centre, adjacent to Macdonalds. The unit is currently vacant.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for a change of use from Use Class A1 (Shops)
to use as a A1 and a laser hair removal facility (sui generis).

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no planning history of relevance to this application site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S11 Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

DAS-SF Shopfronts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary Planning

Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- 8th November 2017

5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Internal Consultees

6 Neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 6.10.17 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 7.11.17. No response received.

Planning Policy Officer:

The unit was noted as vacant in the last Town Centre Survey, undertaken on 25/10/16.
On the Autumn 2015 study before that, it was noted as A1.

The Uxbridge A1 frontage in the Primary Shopping Area is:-

- 67.1% by frontage
- 66% by No. of units

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



The Chimes Shopping Centre itself is substantially higher than this however.

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

710

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
The principle of the development

Uxbridge is recognised as a strategic town centre in the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and the application site lies within a 'primary shopping area' as
designated in the plan. Saved UDP policy S11 indicates that certain service uses, including
Banks and Building Societies (but not other Class A2 uses) and Class A3 Food and Drink
Uses will be acceptable at ground floor level within the shopping frontage so long as:

(a) the remaining retail facilities are adequate to accord with the character and function of
the shopping centre and consumer interests, and

(b), the change will not result in a separation of Class A1 uses or a concentration of non
retail uses which might harm the viability or vitality of the centre.

The proposal involves the change of use of the unit from A1 to sui generis use which would
enable its use for laser hair removal. The use would operate similar to a beauty salon, with
an appointment system in use, but trade would also come from passing members of the
public. As such and given that beauty salons are generally viewed as acceptable within the
primary shopping areas, the principle of the use is considered acceptable.

In terms of the composition of the shopping centre, PEP raise no objections in terms of the
retail composition of the centre and suggest that the actual centre comprises more than the
70% retail, taken to be the benchmark, below which primary areas become vulnerable. Also,
although this change of use would result in all of this 26 m long frontage being non-retail,
this forms one of the main access routes into the shopping centre so that it would continue
to attract shoppers, particularly with the presence of MacDonalds.

It is therefore considered that on balance, given the small size of shop unit and that it has
been vacant for over a year which has included hoarding along its frontage advertising its
vacancy, no objections are raised to the change of use and it generally complies with the
Policy S11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Density of the proposed development

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the consideration of this application
Impact on the green belt

Not relevant to the consideration of this application
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposal does not involve any external alterations.
Impact on neighbours

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Living conditions for future occupiers

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



7.11

712

713

714

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Urban design, access and security

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Disabled access

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not relevant to the consideration of this application
Sustainable waste management

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to the consideration of this application
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Planning obligations

Not relevant to the consideration of this application
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,
the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not relevant to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal involves the change of use of Unit 102 from A1 to A1/sui generis use which
would enable its use for laser hair removal. The proposal would retain a reception area in
the front section of the unit with the laser hair removal facilities being sited towards the rear.
It is considered that the use would accord with the character and function of the shopping
centre and although the change of use would not strictly comply with the requirements of
policy S11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), it is
considered that given the small size of the unit and that the unit is currently vacant, it is
considered that there would be no material harm to the vitality and viability of this part of the
shopping centre.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).
Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

The London Plan (March 2016).

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



The Chimes

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Unlt 102, Intu Uxbridge Residents Services
This copy has been made by or with - . .
the authority of the Head of Committee Clw?l’(glee;::c?ﬁg)lilbc)nFjgibmgiggoﬁﬁ 11 uw
Services pursuant to section 47 of the )
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act). 1 .500
Unless the Act provides a relevant 55969IAP P/201 7/3277 -
exception to copyright. - -

Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database

O 2oy ranance Survey Central and 5539851 February 2018 | T LLINGDON

LONDDN




Agenda ltem 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 254 YEADING LANE HAYES

Development: Change of use from a mixed use comprising shop/vehicle repair workshop (U:
Class A1/B2) to a mixed use comprising alternative therapy centre (Use Class
D1/D2) and beauty salon (Sui Generis) involving installation of new shopfront
and alterations to elevations

LBH Ref Nos: 73287/APP/2017/3974

Drawing Nos: YL/HC/01
YL/HC/02 (Existing Floor Plan and Elevations
YL/HC/02 (Proposed Floor Plan and Elevations
Planning, Design and Access Statemer
YL/HC/00

Date Plans Received:  01/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/11/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the change a mixed use comprising
shop/vehicle repair workshop (Use Class A1/B2) to a mixed use comprising alternative
therapy centre (Use Class D1/D2) and beauty salon (Sui Generis) involving installation of
new shopfront and alterations to elevations. The physical alterations to the building to
include a new shopfront and alterations to the rear elevation are considered to relate
satisfactorily to the architectural integrity of the host building and locality. Subject to an
hours of use condition, the proposals will have little or no noise impacts, compared to the
existing uses and would not detract from highway safety.

2, RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subiject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2 Ccom4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plan number YL/HC/02 Proposed and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 COM12 Use Within Same Use Class

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



The premises shall be used for yoga/therapy centre, beauty salon and retail and for no
other purpose (including any other purpose in Classes A1, D1 or D2 of the Schedule to the
Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987).

REASON
Specify, in accordance with Policies S6, S7 and OE1 of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 COM23 Hours of Use (Restaurant etc.)

The premises shall not be open for customers outside the hours of 0900 to 2100 Mondays -
Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON

To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties in
accordance with Policy OE3 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

5 HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON

To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed development
does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building in
accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from
the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for development control
decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas

S7 Change of use of shops in Parades

OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures

LPP 4.9 (2016) Small Shops

4

Plans submitted would suggest that this building and its facilities would be inaccessible to
disabled people using wheelchairs. Whilst it is appreciated that this is an existing building,
the Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
direct discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within
the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. Although this proposal is essentially for a 'change of use'
planning permission, it is noted that substantial reconfiguration of the internal layout is
proposed and would likely happen if planning permission was granted. The Equality Act
2010 states that service providers should think ahead and take steps to address barriers
that impede disabled people. Following any successful grant of planning permission, it is
recommended that the applicant takes full advantage of the opportunity to make the
premises and service fully accessible to older and disabled people by heeding the following
informatives: 1. Internal passageways should be a minimum of 1200 mm wide. Door widths
should provide a minimum clear opening width of 900 mm to facilitate adequate access for
wheelchair users into therapy rooms. Internal doors should also have 300mm unobstructed
space to the side of the leading edge. 2. The proposed plan does not currently include any
WC provision for disabled people and at least one accessible unisex toilet is required. It
may be more beneficial to provide one large cubicle that would be accessible to everybody,
as opposed to the 3. Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS
EN 60118-4, and a term contract planned for their maintenance. 4. Care must be taken to
ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops in different/adjacent
areas does not occur. 5. Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be
carefully selected to ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely
affect people with epilepsy.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality
The application site comprises a retail unit with a residential flat above and car repair

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 83



workshop to the rear in a local parade of shops on Yeading Lane which lies within the
Developed Area as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the change a mixed use comprising
shop/vehicle repair workshop (Use Class A1/B2) to a mixed use comprising alternative
therapy centre (Use Class D1/D2) and beauty salon (Sui Generis) involving installation of
new shopfront and alterations to elevations.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Relevant Planning History
There is no planning history of relevance to this application.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

S6 Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

S7 Change of use of shops in Parades

OEA1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

LPP 4.9 (2016) Small Shops

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The Willow Tree Lane Area Residents Association and 9 neighbouring properties were consulted by
letter dated 22.11.17 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the site which expired on
21.12.17.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 84



1 letter of comment was received requesting that the use does not interfere with this A1 parade of
shops.

Internal Consultees
Highways Officer:

The site has a low PTAL of 2. There are 2 buses serving the area. Three dedicated car parking
spaces are provided at the rear. Retention of these spaces for the lifetime of the development ought
to be Conditioned. The floor area of 111.5 sq. m is modest and the unit is located in a parade with
parking available in the service road. No transport statement has been provided. The proposed
specific uses as indicated on plans are not considered to result in a material difference to the
vehicular trips generated in comparison with the existing approved use.

Access Officer:

Plans submitted would suggest that this building and its facilities would be inaccessible to disabled
people using wheelchairs. Whilst it is appreciated that this is an existing building, the Equality Act
2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from direct discrimination on the
basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a disability. As part of the Act, service
providers are obliged to improve access to and within the structure of their building, particularly in
situations where reasonable adjustment can be incorporated with relative ease. Although this
proposal is essentially for a 'change of use' planning permission, it is noted that substantial
reconfiguration of the internal layout is proposed and would likely happen if planning permission was
granted. The Equality Act 2010 states that service providers should think ahead and take steps to
address barriers that impede disabled people. Following any successful grant of planning permission,
it is recommended that the applicant takes full advantage of the opportunity to make the premises and
service fully accessible to older and disabled people by heeding the following informatives: 1. Internal
passageways should be a minimum of 1200 mm wide. Door widths should provide a minimum clear
opening width of 900 mm to facilitate adequate access for wheelchair users into therapy rooms.
Internal doors should also have 300mm unobstructed space to the side of the leading edge. 2. The
proposed plan does not currently include any WC provision for disabled people and at least one
accessible unisex toilet is required. It may be more beneficial to provide one large cubicle that would
be accessible to everybody, as opposed to the 3. Induction loops should be specified to comply with
BS 7594 and BS EN 60118-4, and a term contract planned for their maintenance. 4. Care must be
taken to ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops in different/adjacent areas
does not occur. 5. Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be carefully selected
to ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely affect people with epilepsy.
Conclusion: a suitable planning condition, requiring the facility to be accessible to older and disabled
people, should be attached to any grant of planning permission, and the informative outlined above
included in the decision notice.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The Local Planning Authority seeks to protect vulnerable parades which are particularly
important to the community and to provide opportunities for the establishment of new
essential shop uses in existing A1 premises.

Policy S6 states changes of use applications will be granted where; a frontage of design
appropriate to the surrounding area is maintained or provided; the use would be compatible
with neighbouring uses and will not cause unacceptable loss of amenity to nearby residential
properties; and would have no harmful effect on road safety or worsen traffic congestion.

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Policy S7 states changes of uses in parades will only be permitted if the parade retains
sufficient essential shops to provide a choice appropriate to the size of the parade, the
surrounding area is not deficient in essential shop uses, and the proposal accords with
policy S6 (above).

The proposal involves the retention of an A1 use within this parade of shops and the parade
as a whole would retain sufficient variety of retail uses. Thus, the proposed change of use is
considered to be appropriate in terms of its essential retail function within the parade. It is
therefore considered that the proposal would not undermine the retail function of this parade
of shops.

Density of the proposed development

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a 'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
'development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning Authority will seek
to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or improves the
amenity and character of the area'.

The physical alterations to the building to include a new shopfront and alterations to the rear
elevation are considered to relate satisfactorily to the architectural integrity of the host
building and locality. As a result it is considered that it would not have a negative impact
upon the visual amenity of the site or the surrounding area in compliance with Policy BE1 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and policies BE13
and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Impact on neighbours

Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become detrimental to
the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states buildings or uses
which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted if the impact can
be mitigated.

There are residential properties at first floor level above the retail units and to the rear in
Reynolds Road. It is recognised that the current authorised use of application site could
result in a significant level of noise and disturbance due to the unrestricted car repair
workshop. The applicant has indicated that the 1-2-1 therapy session will be a closed door
cubicle space and will not generate more noise than the existing use of the site, especially
the car repair workshop. Furthermore the applicant has agreed to an hours of operation
condition for the hours of 9am - 9pm Mon-Sun. It is considered that subject to the hours of

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



use condition, the proposals will have little or no noise impacts, compared to the existing
uses. The proposal would not therefore be harmful to the amenities of the surrounding
occupiers in accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or
pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The site has a low PTAL of 2. There are 2 buses serving the area. Three dedicated car
parking spaces are provided at the rear.The floor area of 111.5 sq. m is modest and the unit
is located in a parade with parking available in the service road. No transport statement has
been provided. The proposed specific uses as indicated on plans are not considered to
result in a material difference to the vehicular trips generated in comparison with the existing
approved use. The proposal does not seek permission for a general unrestricted D1 and D2
and it is considered that it would be reasonable to impose conditions to restrict hours of
operation to ensure compliance with policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to the Hillingdon's Adopted Parking
Standards (Hillingdon UDP, Saved Policies, September 2007).
7.11 Urban design, access and security

No issues raised.
7.12 Disabled access

Plans submitted would suggest that this building and its facilities would be inaccessible to
disabled people using wheelchairs. Whilst it is appreciated that this is an existing building,
the Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and services from
direct discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within
the structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. Although this proposal is essentially for a 'change of use'
planning permission, it is noted that substantial reconfiguration of the internal layout is
proposed and would likely happen if planning permission was granted. The Equality Act
2010 states that service providers should think ahead and take steps to address barriers
that impede disabled people. Following any successful grant of planning permission, it is
recommended that the applicant takes full advantage of the opportunity to make the
premises and service fully accessible to older and disabled people by heeding the following
informatives: 1. Internal passageways should be a minimum of 1200 mm wide. Door widths
should provide a minimum clear opening width of 900 mm to facilitate adequate access for
wheelchair users into therapy rooms. Internal doors should also have 300mm unobstructed
space to the side of the leading edge. 2. The proposed plan does not currently include any
WC provision for disabled people and at least one accessible unisex toilet is required. It may
be more beneficial to provide one large cubicle that would be accessible to everybody, as
opposed to the 3. Induction loops should be specified to comply with BS 7594 and BS EN
60118-4, and a term contract planned for their maintenance. 4. Care must be taken to
ensure that overspill and/or other interference from induction loops in different/adjacent
areas does not occur. 5. Flashing beacons/strobe lights linked to the fire alarm should be

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



713

714

715

7.16

717

718

719

7.20

7.21

7.22

carefully selected to ensure they remain within the technical thresholds not to adversely
affect people with epilepsy. The Council's Access Officer has advised that a suitable
planning condition, requiring the facility to be accessible to older and disabled people, could
be attached to any grant of planning permission, and the informative outlined above included
in the decision notice.

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Sustainable waste management

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Comments on Public Consultations

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Expediency of enforcement action

Not relevant to the consideration of this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including regional
and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in accordance
with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing the
conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be permitted,
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are imposed,

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The obligations
must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to the scale
and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy 2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic. Where
equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the proposals
against the other material considerations relating to the planning application. Equalities
impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities must be taken
into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be given to any
equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the circumstances

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not relevant to the consideration of this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the change a mixed use comprising
shop/vehicle repair workshop (Use Class A1/B2) to a mixed use comprising alternative
therapy centre (Use Class D1/D2) and beauty salon (Sui Generis) involving installation of
new shopfront and alterations to elevations. The physical alterations to the building to
include a new shopfront and alterations to the rear elevation are considered to relate
satisfactorily to the architectural integrity of the host building and locality. Subject to an
hours of use condition, the proposals will have little or no noise impacts, compared to the
existing uses and would not detract from highway safety.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
The London Plan (2016)

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



—oso---_D
_——_

—————= = _—

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

1' \ ... 308m WILLOQ},;;E
I a
v - o @
oo — L 2 |
Notes Site Address

254 Yeading Lane

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Central and Sguth

Planning Application Ref: Scale
73287/APP/2017/3974 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date ‘?” Kl |
February 2018 | -1/ | | INGDON

LONDDN




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Agenda ltem 13

PART Il by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Agenda ltem 14

PART Il by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



Agenda ltem 15

PART Il by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 116



Agenda Item 16

PART Il by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 7 February 2018

THILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 42 HUGHES ROAD HAYES

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and conversion of
roofspace to habitable use to include a rear dormer and 2 front rooflight to
create 1 x 2-bed flat, 1 x studio flat and a 4-bed HMO.

LBH Ref Nos: 28763/APP/2017/4032
Date Plans Received: 07/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 20/11/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



sowsameney
ageraty 5 ooavoonniosy 7

.ﬁigx I
NV1d 3LTIS ANV ANNOY2 435040¥d

I ] wEas

. VRO e
N¥Id NOILV201
31IS 935040dd

S |

__________




e vyt 3

$07d/S3HONH2Y
L1pasanw o _(Weoza_g..ﬂ__.ﬁ

e

HOLLYWBG ST 035040%d
i

TMYE BN CSIAVH OVOY SIHSNH 2r

xsarone | Tra00L e
a NOILYA3T3
d Od0Odd &) d

@G

2 ZOH.r«Sm_;_m

A¥3d QINO™ddY ATSNOINTHd

V¥ NOILYA313
1NO"d Q3A0dddY ATSNOIATEd

EVGRORL A

8 NOILVYA33
3QIS 43A0dddY A1SNOIAIYd

-t

] pouposeiost D

li.n.usanli,ﬁa. . o Biijgis I
NOTLSALSHOT TV

TVEO00NT -3

NVYId NOLLY201

P /4 31IS Q35040ud

P L] 1 1 4 B g
iy Bttt i L i
el B 4y 8 et i B

mopuim pazel

GO MIN

19110 ¥ (P 00 T

(uonE

L
= : ] - i)
£ I :
- =T | =
: e ¥ Tt TTTE FILTEr
: G : ,
(i3t s
& HANEW o1 IN[d Ul _ H el e _
J3UI0P O $3P18 § IS OF ; i estutsinlsininiatuintrisiaty;
3 | " : e b e b sdeata xnjaA ]
BuiBuey 3 — = —| A ﬂt.k.( r..(.\r.._u .:I../ S——— 5
_| — e e e ! | - —
MO P - _ ={{rHtmhe T __l _
; |idsbaiats s A : "
pazeil 3gnop MaN _ [tatutatiie it SHH - . _.l
; |

[etal e ier
X‘r‘l e b ek
.._u_._ w_..utt,i m
‘xxrrctta i et

P p— IVE051 308
N¥Td 40074 NV1d 30074
14017 Q350404d | 15414 935040%d

[P4es wbsgg sa00ly
£ AT - FW00T BRI

W LaLDARR Juoy SO it

snoaasd 1E tabsdgnyted Mt
panosddo kznol T R
I

WY
pas

whegg
- OIS -iq 4Rid
HLop
Q UOHDATR IpiE
panaadds Asnoimad
wbszg
- weaspag 2 -ty 4914 25 e -
™ pancudde £snotasd

~A NOILYQOWWO2oV

NOILYWIOINI Q3S0d0dd
"MVYE €9N 'SIAYH 'AQY0Od SIHINH 2¢



S NV1d 40014 LS¥ld d3SOd0¥d NV1d 400714 ANNOYD d3SO40dd
e T . v .

g g
[T . — . .

NOLLIS ONY SNV T SO0 14 (35060t F.._
TULLL SN . § WooYa3s 7
, k
\ i NIHDLIN
GAATH e —
VR SHHDNH 2
T HOF y
P
EHOMASOD
NOISNILXT WY IH
NOISIAT ET] AIBOLS IVINIS BIS0IOHd

ONINIG NOIL43DTY

Z WOOyd3g L WOO¥a33

E-— Jneon _-n— _-: ISNOH
LINIDWAY DMILSIX] - LRIDWIOY FNILSING

NOILD3S 1407 d3S0d0Yd
NY1d Y0014 1407 d3s0d0ud

Bunsrvs w3arw 01 SoRgns ru

Ly
Lo JNEEH 21 001 S Bunsix = I |
S0l A GTEIOSIN U S SE S (PUABB TTY 1l
a0 P07 SEIFBES (1I0E gl Adius OF it v {odieatjiaads o sajed) | ... »
118U PRJLINA SUTUAWID (w JIBj 01 Jo0s ey4 = |

e joaiery Buiping Aol @307 By) o )
Wi parwo) PUR SITIILA0 V8L WS TIE I

AT (FO0Z} 1002 1052 S8 ¥ pUT G0 ol
o 1% B3 o AdS ® 300 Batesas 1S I

U BL TR [EIUIS DY) 4O WOISEWOD .
1B SARE EF Ul bR pre) By .} o

AOGIRY (V30 BT 08 SIFIGILED UBHERINLIAS —

<Ja% E puss o ) vousd paladus ayy = 1
wiris e B i | |_

AIriainag ayi Ag pasUBYINE (1336 0 " LLaVH = 7 =3 A &
3 PSR THED BRI VORI 9% T e e -
ur yuw passibas uosiod wwassdwos T e Hivd £ WOOoya3g el HSINLE 0014 15¥14

A AT [RII) d Rd udiptabay \
WWDIT = SHISHY "XVIN ~,
“(HO0Z) LOOE LARE S8 I Siuiuinbas s g WNOSLZ = "LH 900 01 900714 a
UPRIIIE U] BT8R PUY FaRAdU) PRI S > - =
BT #9110 0 PSS PUE Bush (I i B -
IVB|NSU] [DOMESE] i 3 ot
SUDIEPUBIEIRS $1ES TE 51 PUE wiigg Buioddns sisielBixa : v
saprsu paskiBes yes ten Ay e U23MI3G S UM UDHILD 1M h ..... s il e e e SR e
PaLIS 5 01 ST 19(G B1 S : . ' 1 e e
OIS L8N pavrajosd auy aq 01 JO0Y MIN \ > Iy (HE
01 speuaseus ivsspdond jy ] I A e |
A, SRy L P 1 INOIOY U + WOOHA3d TIATT HSINM BOOW 1407 - ___ - I_I .ﬁ
ATUWLIGE JO SIPIS F IU0L O - _ ¥ Na | 1yl poos
BuiBURY Aj [P0 T - __ i _ adeasa xnjap
4 aopuim paze|b .: w~ f = .. -
1%t Ay Aiduios BuE #31500 Bpiing sss o1 sspnag anep MaN L — L L | doopan | -
Jokanins Bujgng: Ry soyine adeIsa Knjap, Il Mz T fa
[P0} 041 0 UOTIMGIEES ay3 03 85 O3 RIS fj wixsey pajuied uo — Jou |
|

BunuiiwBigoos

oy
Winfaoar _ wasiofdnagnog T
__ LHNIH400E
|
- I
o oog _._.____7___7__ h il
____ £ |
¥ £ T 2 Q P L gy o e e e s ey
- —.__w.ulH||m||H||HInH”H||H||N||H||H||.W||H||H| e
1




NOILVAZT3 3dIS LHDIY d3S0d0dd

NOILVYAZT3 3dIS L4317 d3SOd0dd
VOLHEHERS
AZ ON o0
“KE AN DLOTAVW TV N |
00LL - IATVOS
SNCALYAT TS OFS008d
HLLL DN
S3AH
VO SFHONH 2
L Bor
YIe i 01 anojor uy
13WI0P JO SAPIS F IUGI} O
Guibiuey 3 |RIUoZHOH
AHORIAAOD
wiasey pagmied uo
TIETET] e ——————————— sounb ep oot

e pote Baiping Aoyiny (e
HRIH03 BIBMIG) PR IPIGIEED 1EL Uon

56 TARE OF Gtk Waaarda B Buiplg
A0y [£367 S GL FEIST UOLTIGILES
[p4% ® puas -+ uotied sadd syl

g jo
harinaes s A prsONINe (3N 10 Lidve
WEITTE IS0 TuE) P UBENL3 s
A UF Yu peassBas woted Tumedwos

1 Aq phajes [EIITIE) d deeg uou|nbay
Bipyng pur SauEing Bupitm USTIPS H1 | EL
“PHO0EY 1D0T 1£9¢ 5T 6 Sevswaimbe: sl g

e BInap 4 11 40N LR PUE Butiee v

UOTUSWIIGTS: S R 51 PUT
Fepeaven poasisiban ajes vy dq 1

Piisea 8 03 ¥/ 1aji0g 61 Sk

FEOIES SO ST

Ob {iebR A v

JaiE vewElL

4g paassdde vE JusLORIEE HAD BIING 41

o duen ) e (|8 AU B 00y
“Iuourssby IBAD BIING JBNM SRWTGL T OSREL ATY

11E i Ajjsg Apdhes pe 23150u Euipiing sube o
skanns fuipana &

P30 DY 2 DO L3 03 89 O WM IV

Byt GIIew 03 8N FERRINS |V

“swman

FUBY Lo SOUEPION UY B B SRI0M [PUSEI |y

s 5 PO SRNPUTIS WG i A ot miom v
HIIS U PakIABL SUBLOWS fiy

Bupismes yum ynew of
YsIul rutaxg

ABMENRGS 01U PABIRYISID
et adlyd J91EMUIES BIG B ———*

y ®i35E) pajuied uo
1 ] e—— sonnbuH ep 00—

™, 1B 0 17U ey @)

PIE| JOOH JEL) IR LR

BRI U1 yoTeu
o] YSIuly [EUIaNe]

BLISE} paquied uo

S5016 ANISG0 1M
mopum pazeji ajgnop may

m—

=

JAnEYH "EIp 001

¥} o1 joos ey

NOILVAITI ¥V3Y d3SOd0ud

(WEnEadS 01 4aja)

BUIISIND YIM UITEL
©1 5a|1L00) May

YW o inojos ur
Jawinop jo sapis §Iuoiy ol
Buibiuey 2|1 [PINOZLGH

#i35E) paned Ho
B —

(uopeayads o) ajayh
1% 01 Jo0s 101y

mopuim paze|b
Aqnop man

MOpuiw pazej
FANOP Map

NOILVA3T3 LNOY4 d350d0ud

Bursixna yim yoiew o)

st eusang

]
]
-|_
III_| Aempgeos alul pebieyssip
-
]

adid Ja1EMUIED BI B

_ EI35E) paruied uo

THH P 001

[}
NS 08 U g o)
|_I PIE| 00U 101 $320 WM

]
|

ARNEH MIN

]
_ mopuis paze)f
]
|

I 01 N0y W _
Jawiop jo sapis g 1uoly o

1
Gurbuey g _:._on..equ_.|...

sMopULm
pazulb ajquop maN

et |
ATNAD W 00—

(Honraaads 01 1352y) _” /

Hey o) jpood w4 ¢

wi2se) pajured uo

JannGEy'H e ool

BUSISIND I Y1
01 sajiond may

(abe1U0.4) DY W) dIeqIas Aue DARY 10U SP0P

Y21yMm Jo uoisu3lXa 3pIs AR101s Z ay3) buljjamp
bulnogqybiau Buluiofpe yiim AdlswiiAs urelurew
01 se os pasodoid jou abeiuo.y Wody }2eqias Wi

‘J1ON OL ¥3D21440 DONINNY1d

1y Bijont
adersa xnjap
- =

Page 130




MO HRHZ L

L= OM B

AH NAMET BLOCAW AUNT

00LL - IWDE

SNV I DNLESIXT

UL NIRRT

SHAVH
O SIHDNH £F

ERITIR: ¢

AHDIHASOD

NOESIATY dLva

* pue sim3ynses
o o 1onu
1§ o

) 10O | 292 S8
m

R s 04 A uotid kWD sy
i o
Aipinnag 0uI Ay POTACHLAT (AN 0 ' LLVN

AUIMI0X BR800 pUE
paraieial ajzs vwg kg ano

TSSO AL L3I UL
S0 ¥P I A

T ame sy

43 PAADIAGT ¥ TuBwNIER JAG) PInE i
BTG U L0 T 40TUR 01 NG

SuslEy 10AC) PIINE SIYEN SAWRYL 2 6L 1V

08 e RS | Jaie 3TRRWDs 2] Hanwodsal e

ST Bl g 01 Syt
EPUILS HAIE Yai fidusns

NV1d 40014 LS¥Hld DNILSIX3

€ WOO¥Qa39

Z WOOda38 L WOOuUa3g

[ |

ANIIVIOY DNILSIXG

NOILD3S 1407 DNILSIX3

1

o0kt |

NY71d 400714 ANNOYWD DNILSIX3

ISNOH
SHNOIHMIAN DNILSIND

JHO1S IDVUVD

=i

A
-

NIHOLIN

AHOLYAHISNOD ININIC DNIAIT

—;: ISNOH
LNIDWIaY ONILSIXT

NV1d 400714 1407 DNILSIX3

Page 131




Y NOILVATTI dv3d DNILSIX3 NOILVAIT3 3AIS LHDE DNILSIX3

A O 20

A NI DLOTAYW AP

[ TR g

SRONYAT T DHILSING

UL ONIMYEC

S3AVH
OO SIHENH 2%

UL B0

AHEHHAY

NOISIATY Ava

NOILVYATT3 3dIS 1437 DNILSIX3 NOILVYAIT3 LNO¥4 DNILSIX3

a0 e Buippng Auegimy e 941 o)
Sa1d03 piEMan) PUT HIRIIAD WAL BRI pEIRE
TR [$0OZ) 100271492 59 ¥ puk ka1
-1 B3 o A B 410G B KA
11 BUL “¥HA PR UL 10 SOieiwoa

10 LARp OF s LSRRI Jne) Bulpieg
AInoIRY (735 84108 SIRIILSS VDTN
R PUDE O 1 DA SuBladusY Ol
s o

AaEnisag By Ay PHLIOUINE (N 25 Liavi
WEIIT 15T 34T BRI UOaEIIIE- s
TEIILIRIE U i passisiBes vosied waudwod
Al {AapeS (P34 Ly BoTeAERY
Ewipjing pur osurping Busim Somps g1 | eyl
‘HHO02) L00T | 434 S840 SUmLannbal Syi i
FURPIIIT Ul pa1SaE pUT PRI BN
“pauBILEp 4 || oW 111113510 pUR Busiaw (v

SUTIPPUSALIDINS JPS YED OL PUT

S PasnviBas aFE 180 Ag 1o

PHIED 8 01 VID/I0110G 81 THOM

IS EBUMULIEIA 1an L Rt

03 speriarr Aesaodoud |y

T SRR L

A gaansdde ¥ juawanEY A0 BING Sl
FIURNGWOD 91 A2 I 2N5US S JaPINE

WY SAG BTG S SWRYL E 9661 1Y

8 e AT | gL soumdeng 10 SaisuodTes U
e

1 wp Ay K0z PUF 301300 B4IPIRG DS 1 IOPIAE
snksaans Buigging:Lsoyane

1E20f 341 30 UOHIMPGRIIRS JyT 03 B3 0 H45W ||y

BunsIcs 4w 01 SAITLNS IEMIGE |y

LT

WRIFF YU BIUTRICITE UN 8 D1 TR (TN |1V

B3ARI Jr BPOD SRIRRURIS yiniE yin Al 03 medi ||y
B UG PaiaA TUSHLSLID ¥

¢ o [TTTTTITTITTRTCITIT 7 [1T] (TTTTTTT N
¥ £ z : 0
sanep
8 L 9 & v ¢ z Lo

.._E:.__I:.___:.__._.:.::.._”....._._.:..__.:_......._.....__..:.E.W

Page 132







Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 12 DAGNALL CRESCENT COWLEY

Development: Two storey, 2-bed attached dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space and extensions to vehicular crossovers to front.

LBH Ref Nos: 72273/APP/2017/4203
Date Plans Received: 21/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 21/11/2017
Date Application Valid: 21/11/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



"pauodal serouedaiosip Aue pue ays uo payoayd aq o] ale suCISUsLWIp |y
“Aluo sesodind Buiuue|d 1oy Bumelp siy) sjeos

3€0/5291

940g LSNDNY :8led v ®00e:) -9leds o0 8 9 ¥ 2 0 aarica —— oanvisouve KL 231343
Mt oo owisas | 30imoud 0L a3 3EvacT
Suljjaop mau wLiof 03 uoisuixa pasodo.d NV1d 311S

>m I—goo SHINIVLINOD

OMMIDAZTE/I5NS3M HOS

INIOS3IHD T1aANDVA 2L ﬁﬁ e

IVACH OL OIS FTEVI0T

BYE8PY F6F 10 “Buoydaa L <
NOL LIdH "s¥ong ‘squoakm YBIH ‘sue ingsjesseg ‘uieg syigD R
/
usisa(q sutpping  NIMA1vg IAITD T cumos 20

HOIH UWALDO@ | M3N

81/1/02 papinoid

siaueju0o Bupkasisesnjal oy Buipueispiey pue abelols sjpko ainoes
pue uassal) ||eufieq g ol paynuap! yred ssea0e apiM WIWQDE '3
ZL/LL/LL eords Apuswe ZwQg wnwiuiw jo uoisiroid moje

0} papusiue Buyemp pasodoid o} Bupied Jes pue saoeds Bupyed

Z Jo uoisiaoud moje o} ueasel)) ||eubeq Z| woy peaowsal yaiod 'Q

/ / ONIGNYLEOHYH Y NSIHEA
A  GROWOd MIN BAMIS OL GNIN
! QIHSOHT MIN ITACHD

38 0L HOWOd DNILSDE

HAVd SSIOOV

£ 1/9/% | peleledas s18A0SS0ID JEINJIYSA / MAVSLOO FLVLSNIY ONV
pUE pauoisuswIp usasal) |jpubeq 2| o) soeds Buped 0 7 L] BHILSIX3 3AOWIH
___\ SNIONY LSOWYH

/1/p/81 PBPPE SUOISUBWIP JBAOSS0ID JEINJIYaA g

L1/g/1 80inpe uonedjdde-aid yim pioooe

0} pajealpul siauiejuos Bulppkosyasnal ioj Bulpuelspiey pue
abelols ajoho ainoas ‘Buyiemp pasodoid pue Bunsixa o} suapieB
Jeal ZWQp WNWIUIL YIIM Woolpaq g 0} papuslue sfesodold "y

HYWIDIHAA DNUSIXE JAHIS OL
BHIN O3S0HD M3N IOIA0HL

suoisinay

Q8T 11 3OS

NV7d NOILVIOT

ENE0000 SO A00G0T) TS ST Y D102 WOLATY) Lag [B) Mg

Page 135



‘payodar senuedanap AUE PUE S)IS UD PEXISUD B Of SIS SUCUBLID Y
‘Mo sascdind Buuwed s Bumep sup 903

g20/5¢91
GI0Z LSNONY 2eg LY B 00k ‘D5 AES
Susjjamp mau w.of 01 ueIsuaixa pasodoad

40014 1Syl
ATTINCD

L1NIDISIHO T1ANOVA 2}

BrESFY ¥EVL0 Pucydae]
WO HLdH Sieng aquoaiyy ubiy ‘sue Ungsiasseg ‘weg e

usisaqq Sutpping  NIMATVE 3AITD 7

oy 1 ' 3 - T

T,

i owissana

L4441 Saords Bunped
zi imtoﬂasanss.ooﬁ,.o-—?ﬁuw— WOl PRNOLIAL Y20 '
LWE/L Banpe

uoesydde-aid yim pioooe o WDIPeq Z 0) pepusie siEsodald Y j

301S H 1 4v3y

Z L 0

400714 ANNO¥Y

INIATT

SNIAIT

301S H H

o,
PR ES ey

NIHILA

=N

e[ o[

Page 136



ey [T
e o
[ ]
EE. />

|

)
it 3
L. S
! 22 g / ,/ “.‘
v .
(B

o ‘6KéNPtLLCRE§th}‘ IR

Notes Site Address

LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON

For identification purposes only.

Land Forming Part of

This copy has been made by or with

Residents Services
. ) 12 Dag nall Crescent Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the )
iotp:'gggt('tﬁeiggs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
c e Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 72273/APP/021 714203 1 - 1 ’250
exception to copyright.

, Planning Committee Date T sy
© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey

100019283 Central and |§9d.llga February 2018 H~NILLINGDON

LONDDN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 6 HAMILTON ROAD COWLEY UXBRIDGE

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side extension, single storey rear extension
and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer.

LBH Ref Nos: 5670/APP/2017/3929

Date Plans Received:  30/10/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 30/11/2017

Central & South Planning Committee -7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 138



(poasmsa sydu (v
CLUT SENIINAOTHAEA ALEIAOND 98I 9102 o ydusdosy

S
wod przubisepBEs W - jews Wl OLEM
PEG LSE PSRL0 COOW  BECE 206 LZLO (8L SPLEIPRY 15300
Angsaupspy
peoy peayfioy ez
YO VWP

al7 SIN3INdOTIAIA ALd¥3dOdd dSiN

WEl - voasi ON| v @ Bumein o Jeje e
e BEn eBpuaXn

Bunueg sding A8 umein PRGN UBHRUT G g

BT YR WD g BUEld LW WD

JBULIOP Jeal Y}IM UOISIaAUu0D 10|
|oui uoisuaixa apis AaJoys Z ‘Juodj ‘1eal 49 - YdH
‘uonEsjdhy

00G-L A'1VOS
NV1d XO0'14

5
IEx

Bsis

il

|

p|mEk

[
27
T

b

HAMILTON ROAD

AYM NOLAY IS

Page 139



06¢L L 3TVOS
NV1d NOILVYOO

C X
[ -]

]

e

N
Ak

himw TD"*]E
3%: |

Page 140



i

CLLUT SENAWAOTIATC ALY TSI 8]

wod pzubisamb@gsw | pewgy Wl OLSM

PEG LGE PHEL0 T GOW  BEET 206 L2L0- 1BL SPUEIEIN 15200
fargsavpany

peoy peaufioy ezg

SO WY

al1 SIN3aWdOTIAIA ALH3dOHd aSIN

WED - FIESIN L £Y WER] 01 J9i5 Y eI
rvegan abpugen

Busuiag sding A wwitig PEOY UDIRLEH G g

LOZ YUEW YIOZ 208y R LW wang

J3WIOp JBaJ UM UOISIaAUOD o]
[oul uolsualxa apis alo}s Z Juol) ‘Jeal 49 - VdH

‘u ey

]

w7

T ThLs

LI

1T 2UBSNT 1D 0 UoISSIuLed UsuLImM
Aq idasxe papuawe jo poonpoddal og sou Ao pue LT 2uBiseq
19 joayBuldos sy wie pajaidep syiam oy pue Bumelp sy Gy

0661 1oy Buiuely Anunod 3 umal el

10 §§ UONIAE JAPUN BI[I0U PAAIDE 8 0] S JOLIMG JUa2EpE

B SILERUNCG J0AD BURING AIHA PEMONO) SUCISIAC

53 PUR GEGE Y NEM £MEG BT O SILUIBY B JBPUN POULIOJUT
G 03 5/ JOUMO JUBIEDE By} SOLEPUNCT D43 ) Buiplng Bsaum

“EAIONASE

00L‘L ®[eds
S1NOAVY1 44 / 49 d3S0d0dd

(a]
w%.ﬁ_._wm - Lpag
M_.~
Bupue
~—
£peg 4
~—
(0]
zpog (@)
Q)
_____ el o
Leg
Q o
T T — | T T
e a1

T ERT0]

0t § |4 € 4 } 0 g
sanap



LT SINCHNGO TIA T A LU0 B8N 91

woypEubisemb@asw | ewg Wdl 0LSM

PEG LSE PSOLO GO BECE 205 LZLO T PL SPUBPIW 188/
Kingsaupan

peoy pesyfioH ezg

SOPO vupy

dl1 SINIWdOT13A3A ALY3dOdd aS

WP - FOSSHN oNEng EY @ CUMBID 01 IS =
rve aan ‘#Segn

Bunuag eding  Ag umeng ‘pRdY utijLueH § E

SLOE W WR0E aeq BuBid LN R ]

Jauuop Jeal yim uolsiaauod 1jo|
|oul uoisualxa apis Aaiols g ‘uod) ‘1eal 49 - YdH

(1T 2SN 19 40 dorssiiLed uauum
A jdasxe papude Jo peonpoldas oq jou Aew pue gL T zuliseg
19 joayBuldos sy wie pajaidep syiam oy pue Bumelp sy Gy

0661 1oy Buiuely Anunod 3 umal el

10 §8 UOHIDS JOPUN 810U DOAIGS O OF S JOUMO Juaselpe
Bl SHIBPUROG S0A0 BUEING BIMUA TPOMONG) SUoISIMos

S PUE 9661 10V 1B ANEJ BT JO SILLIBY U JAEUN PHLLIOILT
0 0 5] JOUMD JUBIEIDE BYF SOUEPUNOY DU o) Buipyng asaum

TEHIONATE

Srararetets

—

Bl ypjew
i ysuly paspusd

Buyspa yojew
of 58 jooy

00L-} ®[eas
SNOILVYATT3 3AIS ¥ LNOYd / dv3d d350d0dd

Tl

ra I eI Il

+lels

&
! []

|

T

Page 142

00l - L 3T¥3S

g
sanep



CLUT SUNEHAO THAS ALY SO 38N

wo pzubisapi6@asw | ewg wdi OLSM

FEG LSE PSBL0 Q0N BECE 205 LEL0 T PL SPUBIRIN 1330,
fungsasupap,

peay pesylioH ezg

200 LILpY

aL1 SIN3IWNdOTIAIA ALd3dOdd 8SIN

YIO-FEESH  oNEea £ T B 03 19 B
e gan ‘sfpugn
Buwwag sding  Ag umeng "PROM UdyweH § -

GLOT YR WOZ meq Ed LN D

JauLIop Jeal Y}IM UOISIaALOD Yo|
|2ul uoisuajxa apis Aalo}s Z ‘Juol) ‘1eal 49 - YdH

‘ugjesjiddy

BIOA BT

L pag

Zrsg

(1T 2SN 19 40 dorssiiLed uauum
A jdasxe papude Jo peonpoldas oq jou Aew pue gL T zuliseg
19 joayBuldos sy wie pajaidep syiam oy pue Bumelp sy Gy

0661 10y Bupuely Anunod § umo) el

10 §8 UOHIDS JOPUN 810U DOAIGS O OF S JOUMO Juaselpe
Bl SHIBPUROG S0A0 BUEING BIMUA TPOMONG) SUoISIMos

S PUE 9661 10V 1B ANEJ BT JO SILLIBY U JAEUN PHLLIOILT
0 0 5] JOUMD JUBIEIDE BYF SOUEPUNOY DU o) Buipyng asaum

TEHIONATE

00L:L 8[Eedg
SL1NOAVT 4004 ® 44/ 49 ONILSIX3

Page 143

00l - L 3T¥3S

g
sanep



(pansass,

CLLT STNAWNAOTIATI ALHE GO 55N 90T
—
wod pzubisamBmasw | Wl vd. DISM
PEG LSE PGBL0 | QO GEEE ZOS 1Z10 1AL SPUEIRIN 158/,
AIngssupsiL
peoy pesufio Bz
NP0 WPy

al1 SININdOT3AIA ALH3dOdHd 9SIN

Wal - FHasN o

e

Buwwag sding g umesg ‘DECY UMEH O Ll

GLOT YuBl DT HEQ EyEId LN AU

J9WI0P 1B31 YIIM UOISISAUOD 1O]
[2ul UOISUa)Xa apis Aa10)s Z ‘Ju0l) ‘deal 49 - YdH

‘uoyEddy

|

N

047 2ufijsag 19 jo uoyssiued Uaiim
Ag ideoxe popuswe Jjo peanposdos oq Jou Aow pue g1 Zulisag
19 o Biufdas ap aw paiadap syiam ai pus Bumep sy

0661 10y Buluueld Apuned B ume ey
10 §0 LORIIE JAPUN BIOU PAAISS B4 OF 5] UM JUaEDE
BY) SOUEPUNOG J0A0 BUIP|ING BISYAN POMOYO) SUOSIAOLT

5 PUE G664 13 NEM Aief D) 0 SULGY BT JARUN PILLIGHT

84 0] 51 J0UMD JUBIEDE By} SBUERUNOY BUR 0 Buiping asaym

SSIONATS

00L:} oleag

SNOILYATTA 34IS ® LNOY / dv3d ONILSIXT

<t
<t
()
O
@
I [ \

00L 1 3738
p——

g
sslisiy



1

.-
[
a

ER ROAD e
15 i P
,,,,, [— 7_7_,_&_7 \ ,”’
_ [ = ) =

G

"~ avodNoruwveH

T

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the

Site Address

6 Hamilton Road, Cowley,

Uxbridge

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Central and Sguth

Planning Application Ref: Scale
5670/APP/2017/3929 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
February 2018

LONDDN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 1190 UXBRIDGE ROAD HAYES

Development: Use of forecourt and office of former petrol station as a hand car wash and
valeting business.

LBH Ref Nos: 3976/APP/2017/3729
Date Plans Received: 11/10/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 11/10/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th January 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 146



s e s g $+

PRSI T A e

S10a

2107 BqwWSAON- B0
IV @00k | —diedg
SNYd

arg¥an

XREADN S2AeH
peoy eRpLaX 0611

9100/d/110

S GAE M e

L& 0011 8835

NY1d 40074 1SHI4 ONILSIX3

§ o 11]

L

I¥ @ ok

NY1d 3LISR-I00T4 ANNOYO ONILSIXT

B o [l
e L]

@«.@\\
-
I YL DABISIK Iy Tw«:s dd
a [ ]
h s — w
i s
¥ Y L}
| 4004 THLBA ORAGI Tivd S | AVE LOW
s LEE LR 3NB0 473 ONUSIG
| p— '.
L * o _
- " .l
GETL - FVend 8

NVId A0 [ ALl

S3HAL
¥ DINYHOZM ONILEIX3

Page 147




At B v @B
3 SR WAL

s10a e
ool NOILYAZ13 LS3M ONLLSIXE
2@8_;-%3 . 1T I . _
2 W D001 2835 [ |
= EZ00/S/3/) 10 W 7 i _- —
BT &l _
_ R 1 |
_ _ A EW Tl _l r :oow_ _
| _ | - N
| AVE 10N S3HAL
[ __ I - JAH0 4138 2 OINVHOIN PLIEF: Ty
_ g . 1Y 8 0011 683
®i S = = NOILYAT3 HLNOS ONILSIX3
&y T = |
¢ EITRI
T R T _ [l 1] _
_ — = | 1 =)
= mu__f.mmT 2
- PN | (] | AR | i B ~—
TR T (0]
I R T e = Dﬂlu
¥ B 0011 —5e98 W e
i3 8 D0L] - ofkog
88 NOLLI3S ONILSIX3 NOILYAZT3 1S3 ONILSIXZ
| T I | T I 1
L || | 3 WG SR Qe __ _LI. 1! | | s_ _
| : s ] ks, _.. L _ —_— ....u....\#
| - L _ — - ] -\._ | P 1 _I
7 Ve o o
NOILYAT 13 HLYON wz_._rw_xw
[ __ ]lIM e .H_w._.: nt_fun. _mx_il.u # __q _
8| 38 I =S =S | |
| e | e (L __
[ mdtigie | _ i — AYE 1OW ﬁ S3dAL
__ HEEERN N0 S8 B OINVHOI .m




Warehouse

K / — I N \
N S 69 [ s
Site Add
Notes fte Address LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. 1 190 Uxbridge Road Residents Services
This copy has been made by or with - . .
. ) Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the a.uthonty of the Head .Of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
§°tp1ygggt('£eig:)s and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
c e Act). .
Unless the Act provides a relevant 3976/APP/201 713729 1 500
exception to copyright. 5 - C -
© Crown copyright and database anning ommittee Date 4
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey &L NCTYC T

LONDDN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 28, AND 28 WEST WALK HAYES

Development: Two storey, 2-bed, attached dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space and part two storey, part single storey rear extension to existing
dwelling and installation of crossover to front.

LBH Ref Nos: 71945/APP/2017/3032
Date Plans Received:  17/08/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 04/09/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 150



0001 Aening soueuPIO G102 S)YBlL eseqelep pue JybuAdod umold (9)

oszl:L sejoN depy

i,
P x\m_ 5

P

MIep ISepA 8¢

Page 151



—.d; =] _33«3— 9 NAP T . 0011 BRY

R | Gr L)

SNOILYAI T 7 SNYId
SNITTINEG SNILSTHE

g

WIE £8N Xaain
SIAVH WM LSIMEE  Txivw

IHNVSHYS o SHN S HW
TGS

HOLLAMISH AARMYED | AIVO AT
AN ST NYa | elNar v
ONIMYE ALVTAN Nva | cionv a

0T TTYOS

f T ! ™
w a W v [
oL Iwos

[ |
s ) * z a
@1 Ae0s

[ |
3 & z L a
oL TS

[ T 4 ]
o w o 4 a

= e aves
NYld 315 ONILSIX3

D
D

;.. SO 1
NY1d NOELYDOT _
1 1

. ATV 1S3

Uibs | pg - aaeds Al

£ 10014 1814
WhEGE ~ 1004 puntI

3115 0L NOILYOOWODOY WIGL

WS g (x0idde) W3gv 3L

LFTE

NYid H00Td 1SHId ONILSIKE

| weoipsg

wool
woolyeg e Pag

e e

NOILYATTE 301S ONILSIXS

sll 11l
H

o0 TN

NOILYATTS Hyad SHILSTHS

=t

BuiugeBuno

ooy

NOILYATTE INOHA DNILSIXS

Page 152




R Y T

—i d | zorewis LI o01:L/0g1, ] oty s s SR N
W DRGE =iva ;7. U sy H,E_ NY'Id HOO 14 ONNONS 0350408d
SNOILWAZ1E ¥ SNV d o 2 & i 5
NOISNILXI HYIH HOO'H L5MI4 N |
INOISNALXA dy3d AFHOLS TIONIS ol amos
7 SNITI3ND MAN 03S0dodd T | it ik I
= AT NS 00000 TR | 3 s v . s !
) HPE €8N XTI o5 Iwos |
SIAVH WM LSIM ST | [ y 1 : )
- ¥ & z [ 3 _
BNAYSNYS HSHNREN i |
CHTE T T ™ |
NOREATHOSAO A NMYHAD ALva AT o 0 ar or 0 _
Z..‘H.-——wmmg.: Nva aRar v _
S NO NMOHE D31 Kva a1 NOF a _
ONIMYIRT L YOR0 Nva | Lonv 2 _
ONLYHT LV Kvda wany a _
AR ... ', .. |
NIV FLVEET NYa | Leny 4 | Ny Id 80014 1SHI4 0380d0Hd i a3
CHISIATE T A0 00 Nvia | 1 onv 3 " WEE _ ! _ u
: e
_ + v * i
i 3 | . I =
| = ! ki) :
whsj0} - soed tieury posodod | _ ! . o
wbsoZ -eief 4 | ! - il :
wibsgy 00]3 15A3 Butspa _ T, I 7 | !
WkEGE 004 puntis Buisig | _ 11 HE |
BaUE [BUIsu] _ ! i wbsgy .M _
| |}
31IS OL NOILYOOWOD0Y TLOL | 7 100 s I
7 Z pag | wooipag _ _ 7 | 14 1D | _
s v uibsg g (0idde) Y3y 3Lis Bulsikg 1% wbsy¢ ! 17 _ |
S5300V HYINDIHEA i1 - ! 1 I |
| L1 n I=" suncy |
" b ! % I
= _ — & _ 1} _ _
F3 - | | | m. |
ﬁ e ! .\“\ wooiyeg i 1% _ |
7 I ’
; i % L 1} I
e | | 5 v | 0 _ 2
s weolieg | L | 11 u_, =
s = ; Il # (N i E |
: it z wooipag \ | Y 12 %
] _ 17 i ! 17 ! wbsgy o)
|G | Wooipeg 17 1DSg o L7 - 100|4 pI9 =
ot 2 pieoadng 7 Joo|4 18l t fpmig 1% ! _ Dnnu
I / I
ot | preogdng | % | i _ |
| ) 17 i
. ot BuewiguaLyeBuna _ 7 | peg Z Wwoolipag  E— _H_m _ 7 _v _
= 7 2 T % # ) i
{whsyeery | uondmseq wooy i Z _ I 7 , Bl USRI
o “ Y 7 4 7 = Buiway
(vpz] Buliema men 7 ; % W\ 1 abunoyuayony
| A — S S L N _ == %
_ NS s g
| [} \W o
i
_ 1 v \.F‘x
_ " T w— A L%
v _ i i
NYd NOILYDOT I |
| o “ _ |
i 1
o | _ || ; _ !
DIt — ==
_ gioss o AU OOV E T i O NAIRRG NIV e R e B PR ] i e i s S e o SO Y
NOILVAZ13 30IS 0380d08d NOILYAZ TS 301S 0350408 NOILVATTS Hvad 03804084 NOLLYATTS GIS040OH

W e |
O T EF=TET=0
S =l L
T | M __
=31 | | W
|
g,
W




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address UNIT 102, INTU UXBRIDGE, THE CHIMES SHOPPING CENTRE HIGH
STREET UXBRIDGE

Development: Change of use from Use Class A1 (Shops) to use as a laser hair removal
facility (sui generis).

LBH Ref Nos: 55969/APP/2017/3277
Date Plans Received:  08/09/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 07/09/2017
Date Application Valid: 04/10/2017 04/10/2017

Central & South Planning Committee - 7th January 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 154



eV 0GeLiL - 9jeds
ue|d uoneso 8lis
d1S/OSOLIAYS 8y Bumelq

_— . -
wos or 0E 0Z Ol 0

r...é._..e..v. SN | / | | / { 4
e

Page 155




rojeq] P L10Z W31asdo) () L0120 oy | MR

: &g pardasay _ =10 20N 357 Bugin) | @) wonnoloag apuy papyy, YIS ¢ KQ UMEICE | oo 10) s -1 ox o1

. ) Fo01-HgXN : HopEdOY :Ag A2y ‘0041 1 3G 13 .__“..“.._h”__:”w_ﬁ.“u,_ saesippy
NS N— _— = anus) Buiddoyg mu| : paloag 2ye(] AIY 'sjieyeq Buuueld  :apig,
i i SR . . SNISNES :yuar) i0N a0Y G00- 2619 :-oN Burmuiq
: SALON 1qeL BosIARY BMP10-A0Y-UR|J-38PLIGX 1-MIU-SNISUIS-VT6L0 1 AWRUILT AV

0011 HvE 3TVOS

]
w — _ m ﬂ m 0 m : — : : m — m ayis uo abueyo o} oalgns aq Aew pue saljedlpul 5| Jhoke| [eussiu) pasodold 0l G 0
L] = f .

‘UB|d UONBIO0T

"SHIONN [Butalu| pasodoid noke [eussiu) Bunsixg

Page 156

HOO1d ONNOHS w:
NO owaz:zw_ﬂ_




The Chimes

Notes Site Address LONDON BOROUGH

Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
For identification purposes only. Unlt 102, Intu Uxbridge Residents Services
This copy has been made by or with - . .
the authority of the Head of Committee Clw?l’(glee;::c?ﬁg)lilbc)nFjgibmgiggoﬁﬁ 11 uw
Services pursuant to section 47 of the )
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale
Act 1988 (the Act). 1 .500
Unless the Act provides a relevant 55969IAP P/201 7/3277 -
exception to copyright. - -

Planning Committee Date

© Crown copyright and database

O 2oy ranance Survey Central and é&é&ﬂ? February 2018 | T LLINGDON

LONDDN




Report of the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces

Address 254 YEADING LANE HAYES

Development: Change of use from Use Class A1/B2 (Shops/ Vehicle Repair Workshop) to
Use Class A1 (shops); D1/D2 (Alternative therapy centre) and Sui Generis
(Sui Generis), involving installation of new shopfront and alterations to
elevations.

LBH Ref Nos: 73287/APP/2017/3974

Date Plans Received:  01/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 20/11/2017

Central & South Planning Committee -7th February 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 158



-

¥y BIIS 0GZL:L m_cuml//

L10Z/0L/ vl
300

00/3H/TA noo
‘oN'Big 100fosg /

N

N\

S8A0H
sup Buipoa) 467

SS9UPPY PUD BWDN .u&o&\

~

hTa

NV1d NOILYOOT

%, P
\m eg anss|/uoisinay o z/

$8J0N [DJBURY

- /)

"8107 1990300 | buudxa *ipsk | Joj peousdl Dog
*£10Z ybukdoo umoiy
‘kaning soupupi) jo uoissiwsad Joud sy jnoypm payqiyosd st upd 4o sjoyM Ul uonanpoiday
16128L'CSTLIS 162281'CG2L1S 16228L'ESLLLS 161Z81'ESLLLG AQ papunog Daip By} skoys dow siy)
"3]DP SWJ} 0 S|qD|IDAD UOISIAB] pakanins
Buipiodioour pup aspqoiog 2iydoiboss [puonoy Asming soubupiQ By} Wy /107 18q0J0Q §| UC padnpoid
LENET
| | |
! R——

[
1
05 o 0 02 0 0 0l

£STLIS
£0ZLIS
£GLLIS

161281

(§ 74448

“BQ+

[ Y -

Pana 15Q

IV

v A




Page 160



00L°1 ‘=g

NOILYA3IT3 3AIS ONILSIX3 g

00k =g

NY1d 40014 ANNOYO ONILSIX3

0oL} 8eds

NOILVYAZT3 dv3d ONILSIX3 2

001} '9jE2S

NOILVYAT3 LINO¥d ONILLSIX3 v

Page 161



00L:} @eas

NOILVATTE 3dIS d3S0d0dd 8

0oL’} ‘@eas

NOILVATT3 ¥V3d d3S0d0odd O

00L-1 @leag

NY1d HOO1d ANNOYD A3S0d0dd -

001’} -8leas

NOILYATI LINOY4 d350d0dd

Page 162



	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 42 Hughes Road, Hayes - 28763/APP/2017/4032
	7 Land forming part of 12 Dagnall Crescent, Cowley - 72273/APP/2017/4203
	8 6 Hamilton Road, Cowley, Uxbridge - 5670/APP/2017/3929
	9 1190 Uxbridge Road, Hayes - 3976/APP/2017/3729
	10 Land Forming Part of 28 and 28 West Walk, Hayes - 71945/APP/2017/3032
	11 Unit 102, Intu Uxbridge, The Chimes Shopping Centre, High Street, Uxbridge - 55969/APP/2017/3277
	12 254 Yeading Lane, Hayes - 73287/APP/2017/3974
	13 Enforcement Report
	14 Enforcement Report
	15 Enforcement Report
	16 Enforcement Report
	PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

